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Your Directors are pleased to present theirThirty Fourth Annual Report and the audited statements of accounts
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2013.

The financial results of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2013 are summarized below.

st

st

Particulars 2012-13

3,590.10

109.56

3,480.54

61.10

3,541.64

3,359.22

Operating Profit (PBDIT) 182.42

30.17

36.96

Profit Before Tax (PBT) 115.29

30.41

84.88

427.60

8.44

520.92

Appropriations

10.13

1.72

8.48

500.59

2011-12(PY)

Income from contracts, services and sale of goods 3,076.58

Less: Indirect Taxes and Duties 58.62

Total 3,017.97

Other Income 52.25

Total Income 3,070.22

Operating Expenditure 2,796.40

273.82

Interest 22.07

Depreciation 27.92

223.83

Provision for Taxes 69.13

Profit After Tax (PAT) 154.70

Balance brought forward from previous year 311.91

Amount transferred from debenture redemption reserve -

Amount available for appropriations 466.61

Proposed Dividend 20.25

Tax on Proposed Dividend 3.29

General Reserve 15.47

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 427.60

The Board of Directors recommends payment of dividend of 50/- per share (50 %) for the year ended 31 March
2013 [PY 100/- per share (100%)],subject to approval by the Members at the Annual General Meeting.

The total income for the year aggregated 3541.64 crore (PY: 3070.22 crore). The operating profit for the
year was 182.42 crore (PY: 273.82 crore) resulting in a Profit Before Tax (PBT) of 115.29 crore (PY: 223.83 crore).
The reduction in profit is mainly attributable to cost overruns in some projects, claims not materializing and
change in the provisioning policy for old receivables.

st
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EPC-STRATEGIC BUSINESS UNITS (SBUs)
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Place : Mumbai on behalf of the Board of Directors
Date : 22 May 2013

Chairman

nd
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Information as per Section 217(1) (e) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies (Disclosure of
Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules 1988 forming part of the Directors' Report for
the accounting year ended 31 March 2013.

Tower Manufacturing Unit, Nagpur is conscious of the need for energy conservation and striving to
explore the possibilities of reducing energy consumption.Some of the measures taken are as under.
a. Received an incentive of 6,47,000/- towards maintaining unit Power Factor (PF) throughout the year.
b. Developed single lift hanger arrangement for all galvanizing bath cover to reduce heat loss resulting

in saving of Ignite Oil of 300 litre per day and enhance the throughput without adding input.
c. Saved ignite oil by 3.44 % in bending furnace by developing Universal Bending Dye to reduce the tool

changing time.

Some of the measures taken are as under:-
a. Adopted advanced latest Model of CNC Angle Heel Milling machine for faster and economical heel

cutting operation,which totally avoided gas cutting and heel removing by angle grinder.
b. Adopted Broach Cutting Machine for performing hole after Bend operation which reduced the

manual fatigue while handling material and also requires less floor space for operation.
c. Adopted battery operated material transfer trolley for faster and safe movement of material from raw

material yard to fabrication shop and from fabrication to galvanizing shop.
d. Adopted CNC Gussets punching and high speed drilling rpm which is doing both the punching and

drilling in the same work place. Use of this machine also enhances the faster completion of gussets
with improved quality and productivity.

In continuation of its efforts to introduce innovative models in R.O.Water purification units for community
service, WPPDC designed, developed and tested a fully automated R.O.Unit with remote monitoring
system.The model enables controlling the operation of the several units from a remotely located single
system utilizing GSM cellular technology and has facility to communicate alerts on R.O.Plant operation
parameters to three users on their mobile phones.The model reduces manual intervention in operation of
community based R.O.plants and facilitates timely intervention in controlling the operation.

st

A Conservation of Energy:

B. Technology Absorption :
1. Tower Manufacturing Unit (TMU)

2. Manufacturing of Reverse Osmosis (RO) Water Purification Plants at Water Purification Development
Centre (WPPDC),Medchal,Hyderabad.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo.





16





INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF TATA PROJECTS LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

Auditors' Responsibility

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2013, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

The Company's Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position,financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the Accounting Standards referred to in Section 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”) and in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India.This responsibility includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the financial statements.The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,whether due to fraud or error.In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances,but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet,of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2013;

(b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss,of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;
and

(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement,of the cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date.

TATA PROJECTS LIMITED
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003(“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 227(4A) of the Act, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 227(3) of the Act,we report that:

(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion,proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in Section 211(3C) of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2013 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2013 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 274(1)(g) of the Act.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No.008072S)

K Rajasekhar
Place : Secunderabad Partner

Date : May 22, 2013 (Membership No.23341)
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report
of even date)

Having regard to the nature of the Company's business/activities/results during the year, clauses (vi), (x), (xii),
(xiii),(xiv),(xviii) and (xx) of paragraph 4 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(i) In respect of its fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of the fixed assets.

(b) Some of the fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance
with a programme of verification, which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the
fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The fixed assets disposed off during the year,in our opinion,do not constitute a substantial part of the
fixed assets of the Company and such disposal has, in our opinion, not affected the going concern
status of the Company.

(ii) In respect of its inventory:
(a) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at

reasonable intervals.
(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, having regard to the

nature of inventory,the procedures of physical verification by way of physical count,site visits by the
Management and certification of extent of work completion by competent persons, are reasonable
and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
maintained proper records of its inventories and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical
verification.

(iii) The Company has neither granted nor taken any loans,secured or unsecured,to/from companies,firms or
other parties listed in the Register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act,1956.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate
internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with
regard to purchases of inventory and fixed assets and the sale of goods and services.During the course of
our audit,we have not observed any major weakness in such internal control system.

(v) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us,
there were no contracts or arrangements, particulars of which needed to be entered in the Register
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act,1956.

(vi) In our opinion, the internal audit functions carried out during the year by the Management and a firm of
Chartered Accountants appointed by the Management have been commensurate with the size of the
company and the nature of its business.

(vii) We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies
(Cost Accounting Records) Rules, 2011 prescribed by the Central Government under Section 209(1)(d) of
the Companies Act, 1956 and are of the opinion that, , the prescribed cost records have been
maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

prima facie
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(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund,
Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth
Tax,ServiceTax,Custom Duty,Excise Duty,Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with
the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Investor Education and
Protection Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax,Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Customs
Duty,Excise Duty,Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,2013 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) Details of dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax,Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty and Cess
which have not been deposited as on March 31,2013 on account of disputes are given below:

1999-2000 to

2003-04,

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No.008072S)

K Rajasekhar
Place : Secunderabad Partner

Date : May 22, 2013 (Membership No.23341)

Statute Nature of Dues Forum where
Dispute is pending amount relates ( in lakhs)

Period to which the Amount involved

SalesTax Laws SalesTax SalesTax Appellate
Tribunal 2004-05,2008-09 513.40

SalesTax Laws SalesTax First Appellate
Authority 2006-07 to 2009-10 1,417.52

SalesTax Laws SalesTax High Court 2001-02,2002-03,
2006-07 to 2011-12 2,534.49

IncomeTax Laws IncomeTax Commissioner of
IncomeTax Appeals 2008-09 30.94

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in the repayment of dues to financial institutions,banks and debenture holders.

(x) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,the terms and conditions of
the guarantees given by the Company for loans taken by the Company's subsidiary from banks are not,

, prejudicial to the interests of the Company.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have been
applied for the purposes for which they were obtained.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the Balance Sheet of the Company, we report that funds raised on short-term basis have,

not been used during the year for long- term investment.

(xiii) The Company has created security in respect of the debentures issued.

(xiv) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the Company and no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

prima facie

prima facie,
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2013st

As at
March 31, 2012

in lac

As at
Note No. March 31, 2013

in lac

22

In terms of our report attached

Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Prasad R Menon Vinayak K Deshpande

K Rajasekhar Rajgopal Swami Dr A Raja Mogili

Director Managing Director

Company SecretaryPartner Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date  : May 22, 2013

Place : Secunderabad
Date  : May 22, 2013
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2013st

For the year ended
March 31, 2012

in lac

For the year ended
Note No. March 31, 2013

in lac

In terms of our report attached

Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Prasad R Menon Vinayak K Deshpande

K Rajasekhar Rajgopal Swami Dr A Raja Mogili

Director Managing Director

Company SecretaryPartner Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date  : May 22, 2013

Place : Secunderabad
Date  : May 22, 2013



Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2013st

For the
March 31, 2012

in lac

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2013

in lac

Year Ended

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
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31 March 2013st

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2012

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2013

in lac in lac

In terms of our report attached

Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Prasad R Menon Vinayak K Deshpande

K Rajasekhar Rajgopal Swami Dr A Raja Mogili

Director Managing Director

Company SecretaryPartner Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date  : May 22, 2013

Place : Secunderabad
Date  : May 22, 2013



Note 1 Corporate Information

Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

2.2 Use of estimates

2.3 Fixed Assets

2.4 Depreciation and amortisation,impairment

Tata Projects Limited (TPL) was established in 1979 and is in the business of executing Engineering,
Procurement and Construction (EPC) contracts in various infrastructure fields, comprising power
generation, transmission, distribution and related ancillary services including manufacturing activity,
telecommunications,civil construction and other allied engineering and quality services.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,on an accrual basis,to
comply with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India ("Indian GAAP"), the Accounting
Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act,1956.
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those
followed in the previous year.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,disclosures
relating to contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the year. Examples of such estimates include accounting for contract
costs expected to be incurred to complete the projects,provisions for doubtful debts,obligations under
employee retirement benefit plans, income taxes, post contract warranties, and the useful lives of
tangible and intangible fixed assets.The management believes that the estimates used in preparation of
the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ from these estimates
and the difference between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which
the results are known / materialize.

Fixed Assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortization. The cost of fixed assets
comprises its purchase price and other attributable expenditure incurred in making the asset ready for
its intended use and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to
the date the asset is ready for its intended use.

Depreciation has been provided on the written down value method as per the rates prescribed in
Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 except in respect of following assets, in whose case
depreciation is provided on the straight-line method (SLM), basis the life of the assets which has been
assessed as under:
Scaffolding materials 5 years
Wire ropes and slings 2 years
Computer including software 4 years
Motor cars under car policy for executives 4 years
Leasehold land and leasehold improvements are amortized over the duration of the lease.
Assets costing less than 10,000 are fully depreciated in the year of capitalization.

All fixed assets are assessed for any indication of impairment at the end of each financial year. On such
indication, the impairment loss being the excess of carrying value over the recoverable value of the
assets is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the respective financial years.The impairment loss
recognized in prior years is reversed in cases where the recoverable value exceeds the carrying value,
upon reassessment in the subsequent years.
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2.5 Investments

2.6 Inventories

2.7 Revenue recognition

2.8 Unbilled revenues

2.9 Foreign ExchangeTransactions

Long-term investments are carried individually at cost less provision for diminution, other than
temporary, in the value of such investments.Premium paid on investments acquired to hold till maturity
is amortised over the holding period.
Current Investments are carried individually,at the lower of cost and fair value.

Raw materials are valued at lower of cost,ascertained on "weighted average" method and net realisable
value.
Finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable values. Cost comprises, material and
applicable manufacturing overheads and excise duty.
Stores and spares are valued at cost or below on weighted average basis.
Goods-in-transit are valued at cost or below.

(i) Income from Contracts

Revenue from execution of contracts is recognised on Percentage Completion method. The stage of
completion is determined on the basis of actual work executed during the period.

No profit is recognized till a minimum of 10% progress is achieved on the contract. Cost incurred and
invoices raised in respect of such contracts are carried in the Balance Sheet as contracts in progress and
advance billing respectively.

When it is probable at any stage of the contract,that the total cost will exceed the total contract revenue,
the expected loss is recognised immediately.

(ii) Revenue from sale of goods and services is recognized on dispatch of goods and upon transfer of
property in the goods to customers and at the time of rendering of services respectively. Sales includes
excise duty and other indirect taxes but excludes indirect taxes collected from customers.

Unbilled revenue represents value of work executed,billed subsequent to the Balance Sheet date and is
valued at contract price.

(i) Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are restated at the
prevailing year end rates.The resultant gain / loss upon such restatement along with gain / loss on
account of foreign currency transactions are accounted in the statement of profit and loss.

(ii) In respect of items covered by forward exchange contracts, the premium or discount arising at the
inception of such a forward exchange contract is amortized as expense or income over the life of
the contract. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such a forward exchange
contract is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(iii) In respect of financial statements of integral foreign operations of foreign branches,fixed assets are
recorded at cost, based on the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Current
assets and current liabilities are reported using the exchange rates on the date of balance sheet,
income and expenses are translated at the monthly average rates of exchange. The resultant
exchange gains / losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.



2.10 Retirement benefits

2.11 Taxes on income

2.12 Earnings per share

2.13 Segment reporting

The company's contribution to provident fund and superannuation fund, considered as defined
contribution plans are charged as an expense in the statement of profit and loss based on the amount of
contribution required to be made.

The defined benefit plans comprises gratuity and post retirement medical benefits. Gratuity is covered
under a scheme administrated by Tata AIG Life Insurance Company Limited. The liability as at Balance
Sheet date is provided based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary, in
accordance with Accounting Standard 15 on 'Employee Benefits' (AS 15).
Provision for pension and medical benefits payable to retired Managing Directors is made on the basis of
an actuarial valuation as at the Balance Sheet date.

Other long term employee benefits comprise compensated absences which is provided based on an
actuarial valuation carried out in accordance with AS 15 as at the Balance Sheet date.

Current tax is determined based on the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year.
Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences,being the difference between the taxable income and
accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent
periods subject to consideration of prudence.Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed depreciation and carry
forward of losses are not recognised unless there is a virtual certainty that there will be sufficient future
taxable income available to realise such assets. Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been measured
using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the Balance Sheet
date.

The earnings considered in ascertaining the company’s Earnings Per Share (EPS) comprise net profit
after tax (and includes the post tax effect of any extra ordinary items). The number of shares used in
computing Basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.
Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed to be converted as of the beginning of the year,unless they
have been issued at a later date. The number of shares used for computing the diluted EPS is the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year after considering the dilutive potential
equity shares.

The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns
and the internal organisation and management structure.The operating segments are the segments for
which separate financial information is available and for which operating profit/(loss) amounts are
evaluated regularly by the executive Management in deciding how to allocate resources and in
assessing performance.
The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the
Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been
identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.
Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined based
on market/fair value factors.
Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable
to segments on reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated revenue/ expenses/
assets/ liabilities”.

Defined contribution plans

Defined benefit plans

Other long term employee benefits
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2.14 Provisions and Contingencies

2.15 Operating cycle

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will be required to settle the
obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement
benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate
required to settle the obligation at the Balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes.

When it is probable at any stage of the contract,that the total cost will exceed the total contract revenue,
the expected loss is recognised immediately.
Provision for anticipated warranty costs is made on the basis of technical and available cost estimates.

The Company's activities (primarily construction activities) have an operating cycle that exceeds
a period of twelve months. The Company has selected the duration of the individual contracts as
its operating cycle, wherever appropriate, for classification of its assets and liabilities as current and
non-current.



(iv) Aggregate number of bonus shares Issued as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being
received in cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date:

Aggregate number of shares

As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 3  Share Capital

(ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the equity shares

(iii) Shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity shares

As at
March 31,2013

Number %
of shares

Equity shares of 100 each with voting rights

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 100 each per share. Each holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the
Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders.
During the year ended March 31, 2013, the amount of per share dividend recognised as distribution to equity
shareholders was 50 (March 31,2012 : 100)

As atYear ended
March 31,2012

Number %
of shares

The Tata Power Company Limited 967,500 47.78 967,500 47.78
Tata Chemicals Limited 193,500 9.56 193,500 9.56
Tata Sons Limited 135,000 6.67 135,000 6.67
Voltas Limited 135,000 6.67 135,000 6.67
Tata Motors Limited 135,000 6.67 135,000 6.67
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As at March 31, 2012

Number in lac
of Shares

As at March 31, 2013

Number in lac
of Shares

Authorised

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up

Total             2,025,000 2,025.00 2,025,000 2,025.00

(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of
the year

Equity shares with voting rights

Year ended
March 31, 2013

Number Amount
of shares ( in lac)

2,025,000 2,025.00 2,025,000 2,025.00
- - - -

At the end of the year 2,025,000 2,025.00 2,025,000 2,025.00

Equity shares of 100/- each with voting rights 2,500,000 2,500.00 2,500,000 2,500.00

Equity shares of 100/- each with voting rights 2,025,000 2,025.00 2,025,000 2,025.00

Notes:

Year ended
March 31, 2012

Number Amount
of shares ( in lac)

As at beginning of the year
Changes during the year
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

As at

March 31, 2012

in lac

As at

March 31, 2013

in lac

4,987.50 4,987.50

Opening balance 843.75 843.75

Less: transferred to surplus in the statement of profit and loss
on redemption of 8% partly convertible debentures
(non convertible portion) (843.75) -

Closing balance - 843.75

Opening balance 12,026.12 10,479.07
Add: transferred from surplus in statement of profit  and loss 848.76 1,547.05

Closing balance 12,874.88 12,026.12

Opening balance 42,760.97 31,191.12
Add: Profit for the year 8,487.61 15,470.41

Amount transferred from debenture redemption reserve 843.75 -
Less: Dividend proposed to be distributed to

equity shareholders [ 50 per share (March 31,2012
100/- per share)] (1,012.50) (2,025.00)

Tax on dividend (172.07) (328.51)

Transferred to general reserve (848.76) (1,547.05)

Closing balance 50,059.00 42,760.97

(a) Securities premium account

(b) Debenture redemption reserve

(c) General reserve

(d) Surplus in statement of profit and loss

Total 67,921.38 60,618.34

Note 4  Reserves and Surplus



Notes forming part of the financial statements

Notes:
(I) 8% partly convertible debentures (non convertible portion) of 3,000 each issued on August 29,2006

has been redeemed at par in 3 equal annual installments commencing at the end of 4th year from the
date of allotment and secured by way of :
a) First pari-passu equitable mortgage of all immovable properties of the Company located in

Hyderabad, Andhra Pradesh ranking on par with other lenders of the Company.
b) First charge by way of hypothecation of all movable properties / fixed assets,and
c) Floating charge on current assets and loans and advances,subject to first charge being in favour of

the Company's bankers and / or working capital lenders.
(ii) Term loan from banks are repayable in equal periodic installments upto a 10 year period from the date

of respective loan and carry an interest of 14.1% p.a.

Note 5  Long-term borrowings

As at March 31, 2012

Nil (March 31, 2012: 112,500) 8% partly convertible debentures
(non convertible portion) - 1,125.00
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings disclosed

Note 10 - Other current liabilities - 1,125.00
- -

From banks 59.83 66.98
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings disclosed

under Note 10 - Other current liabilities 10.98 6.28
48.85 60.70

As at March 31, 2013
in lac

Term loan (unsecured)

Total 48.85 60.70

Debentures (Secured)

under

Note 6  Other long-term liabilities

Note 7  Long-term provisions

As at March 31, 2012

(i) Compensated absences 1,274.21 647.16

(ii) Gratuity 101.33 -

(iii) Post retirement medical benefits 25.95 17.71

(iv) Pension 241.83 180.97

As at March 31, 2013
in lac

Provision for employee benefits

Total 1,643.32 845.84
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As at March 31, 2012As at March 31, 2013
in lac

Trade payables * 883.55 894.06

* comprises retention money payable beyond the normal operating cycle.

Total 883.55 894.06
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 8  Short-term borrowings
As at March 31, 2012

Overdraft facilities (refer Note (i) below) 800.29 117.34
Buyer's credit  (refer Note (ii) below) 3,029.06 -

As at March 31, 2013
in lac

Loans repayable on demand from banks (secured)

Total 3,829.35 117.34

Notes :
(i) Overdraft facilities are secured by:

(a) a first charge on the book debts,inventories and other current assets ranking pari-passu.
(b) an exclusive charge on the entire receivables, fixed assets and current assets relating to the project being

undertaken at Dubai.
(ii) Buyer's credit are secured by a first charge on all the current assets including inventories,receivables and other

moveable assets of the Company both present and future.

Note 9 Trade payables
As at March 31, 2012

Other than Acceptances * (refer note below for details of dues
to Micro and Small enterprises) 221,747.81 203,000.67

* includes provision for contract execution expenses 56,749.99 lac (March 31, 2012: 87,826.56 lac)

Disclosure under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 *

As at March 31, 2013
in lac

Total 221,747.81 203,000.67

Note:

As at March 31, 2012

(a) Principal amount remaining unpaid as at the
end of the accounting year 1,994.74 499.05

(b) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid as at the
end of the accounting year 49.84 2.54

(c) The amount of Interest paid along with the amounts of
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day - -

(d) The amount of interest due and payable for the year - -

(e) The amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the
end of the accounting year 70.44 20.61

(f ) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
as above are actually paid 70.44 20.61

*amounts unpaid to micro and small enterprises on
account of retention money has not been considered for
the purpose of interest calculation.

Dues to Micro and Small enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the
basis of information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the Auditors.

As at March 31, 2013
in lac



Notes forming part of the financial statements

As at March 31, 2013
in lac

As at March 31, 2012
in lac

(a) Current maturities of long-term borrowings
(refer Note 5 - Long-term borrowings) 10.98 1,131.28

(b) Interest accrued and due on borrowings 1.47 0.80
(c) Income received in advance (advance billing) 154.08 207.32
(d) Other payables :

(i) Statutory remittances 3,098.88 2,121.68
(ii) Payables on purchase of fixed assets 933.87 380.12
(iii) Interest accrued on trade payables and

mobilisation advance received 388.25 461.15
(iv)Security deposits received 388.65 306.34
(v) Mobilisation advances from customers 92,566.32 68,927.22
(vi)Others 35.62 29.58

Total                  97,578.12 73,565.49

Note 10  Other Current Liabilities

Note 11 Short-term provisions

As at March 31, 2013
in lac

As at March 31, 2012
in lac

(a) Provision for employee benefits:
(i) Compensated absences 285.77 81.72
(ii) Gratuity - 0.27
(iii) Post retirement medical benefits 3.00 10.00
(iv) Pension 31.80 30.16

320.57 122.15
(b) Provisions - Others:

(i) Taxation (net of advance tax Nil
(March 31, 2012 : 31,491.93 lac)) - 1,007.13

(ii) Foreseeable losses on contracts
(refer Note 31.19) 577.76 606.85

(iii) Proposed dividend 1,012.50 2,025.00
(iv) Tax on proposed dividend 172.07 328.51

1,762.33 3,967.49

Total                    2,082.90 4,089.64
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N
o

te
 1

2
Ta

n
g

ib
le

 a
ss

et
s

in
 la

c

G
R

O
SS

 B
LO

C
K

D
EP

R
EC

IA
TI

O
N

 / 
A

M
O

R
TI

SA
TI

O
N

N
ET

 B
LO

C
K

Pa
rti

cu
lar

s
As

 at
31

st 
M

ar
ch

,
20

12
20

13
20

12
20

13
20

13
20

12

Fr
ee

ho
ld

 La
nd

32
2.

32
-

-
32

2.
32

-
-

-
-

32
2.

32
32

2.
32

(3
22

.3
2)

-
-

(3
22

.3
2)

-
-

-
-

Le
as

eh
ol

d 
La

nd
51

.9
8

-
-

51
.9

8
3.

21
0.

55
-

3.
76

48
.2

2
48

.7
7

(5
1.

98
)

-
-

(5
1.

98
)

(2
.6

6)
(0

.5
5)

-
(3

.2
1)

Bu
ild

in
gs

81
9.

53
-

-
81

9.
53

27
1.

28
50

.9
7

-
32

2.
25

49
7.

28
54

8.
25

(8
19

.5
3)

-
-

(8
19

.5
3)

(2
14

.8
7)

(5
6.

41
)

-
(2

71
.2

8)
Le

as
eh

ol
d 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

46
0.

09
41

9.
70

-
87

9.
79

21
1.

49
82

.8
4

-
29

4.
33

58
5.

46
24

8.
60

(4
68

.8
0)

-
(8

.7
1)

(4
60

.0
9)

(1
63

.4
1)

(4
8.

08
)

-
(2

11
.4

9)
Pl

an
t a

nd
 M

ac
hi

ne
ry

(in
clu

di
ng

 Er
ec

tio
n/

Co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

M
ac

hi
ne

ry
)

19
,2

64
.2

6
8,

23
2.

42
35

.0
8

27
,4

61
.6

0
7,

60
7.

36
2,

85
7.

56
31

.2
7

10
,4

33
.6

5
17

,0
27

.9
5

11
,6

56
.9

0
(1

5,
57

7.
88

)
(4

,3
07

.6
8)

(6
21

.3
0)

(1
9,

26
4.

26
)

(6
,0

38
.9

8)
(2

,1
17

.4
6)

(5
49

.0
8)

(7
,6

07
.3

6)
Fu

rn
itu

re
s &

 Fi
xt

ur
es

63
4.

82
33

1.
22

68
.2

1
89

7.
83

43
2.

08
95

.5
0

47
.5

2
48

0.
06

41
7.

77
20

2.
74

(6
23

.2
3)

(3
3.

19
)

(2
1.

60
)

(6
34

.8
2)

(3
79

.9
2)

(6
6.

30
)

(1
4.

14
)

(4
32

.0
8)

Ve
hi

cle
s *

89
0.

46
42

1.
52

10
1.

34
1,

21
0.

64
44

6.
87

19
0.

03
79

.9
4

55
6.

96
65

3.
68

44
3.

59
(6

64
.0

2)
(3

11
.7

6)
(8

5.
32

)
(8

90
.4

6)
(3

81
.9

7)
(1

27
.4

0)
(6

2.
50

)
(4

46
.8

7)
Of

fic
e 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t
1,

00
3.

14
46

7.
81

41
.4

6
1,

42
9.

49
47

7.
33

12
8.

41
26

.2
9

57
9.

45
85

0.
04

52
5.

81
(7

92
.1

6)
(2

24
.7

4)
(1

3.
76

)
(1

,0
03

.1
4)

(3
91

.0
6)

(9
7.

31
)

(1
1.

04
)

(4
77

.3
3)

Co
m

pu
te

rs
1,

03
5.

40
22

8.
49

27
.4

3
1,

23
6.

46
80

5.
37

13
2.

36
26

.7
7

91
0.

96
32

5.
50

23
0.

03
(9

97
.1

8)
(1

30
.1

6)
(9

1.
94

)
(1

,0
35

.4
0)

(7
78

.3
0)

(1
18

.9
5)

(9
1.

88
)

(8
05

.3
7)

R 
& 

D 
- C

ap
ita

l M
ob

ile
De

sa
lin

at
io

n 
Pl

an
t

40
.2

4
-

-
40

.2
4

26
.4

9
1.

91
-

28
.4

0
11

.8
4

13
.7

5
(4

0.
24

)
-

-
(4

0.
24

)
(2

4.
27

)
(2

.2
2)

-
(2

6.
49

)

Pr
ev

io
us

 ye
ar

20
,3

57
.3

4
5,

00
7.

53
84

2.
63

24
,5

22
.2

4
8,

37
5.

44
2,

63
4.

68
72

8.
64

10
,2

81
.4

8
14

,2
40

.7
6

As
 at

As
 at

As
 at

As
 at

As
 at

Ad
di

tio
ns

De
du

ct
io

ns
31

st 
M

ar
ch

,
31

st 
M

ar
ch

,
Fo

r t
he

 ye
ar

On
 d

ed
uc

tio
ns

31
st 

M
ar

ch
,

31
st 

M
ar

ch
,

31
st 

M
ar

ch
,

To
ta

l
24

,5
22

.2
4

10
,1

01
.1

6
27

3.
52

34
,3

49
.8

8
10

,2
81

.4
8

3,
54

0.
13

21
1.

79
13

,6
09

.8
2

20
,7

40
.0

6
To

ta
l

24
,5

22
.2

4
10

,1
01

.1
6

27
3.

52
34

,3
49

.8
8

10
,2

81
.4

8
3,

54
0.

13
21

1.
79

13
,6

09
.8

2
20

,7
40

.0
6

* 
in

cl
u

d
es

 h
ea

vy
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

vi
z.

tr
ac

to
rs

, t
ra

ile
rs

, t
ip

p
er

s
A

m
o

u
n

ts
 in

 b
ra

ck
et

s 
re

p
re

se
n

t 
p

re
vi

o
u

s 
ye

ar
 n

u
m

b
er

s.



N
o

te
 1

3
 In

ta
n

g
ib

le
 a

ss
et

s

As
 at

31
st 

M
ar

ch
,

20
12

20
13

20
12

Ye
ar

de
du

ct
io

ns
20

13
20

13
20

12
So

ftw
ar

e
74

1.
85

41
.8

1
-

78
3.

66
45

7.
75

15
6.

00
-

61
3.

75
16

9.
91

28
4.

10
(7

41
.8

5)
-

-
(7

41
.8

5)
(3

00
.6

9)
(1

57
.0

6)
-

(4
57

.7
5)

Go
od

w
ill

2,
13

2.
57

-
-

2,
13

2.
57

2,
13

2.
57

-
-

2,
13

2.
57

-
-

(2
,1

32
.5

7)
-

-
(2

,1
32

.5
7)

(2
,1

32
.5

7)
-

-
(2

,1
32

.5
7)

-
-

Pr
ev

io
us

 ye
ar

2,
87

4.
42

-
-

2,
87

4.
42

2,
43

3.
26

15
7.

06
-

2,
59

0.
32

28
4.

10

GR
OS

S 
BL

OC
K

DE
PR

EC
IA

TI
ON

 / 
AM

OR
TI

SA
TI

ON
NE

T B
LO

CK
Pa

rti
cu

lar
s To

ta
l

2,
87

4.
42

41
.8

1
-

2,
91

6.
23

2,
59

0.
32

15
6.

00
-

2,
74

6.
32

Ad
di

tio
ns

De
du

ct
io

ns
As

 at
As

 at
As

 at
As

 at
As

 at
31

st 
M

ar
ch

,
31

st 
M

ar
ch

,
Fo

r t
he

On
31

st 
M

ar
ch

,
31

st 
M

ar
ch

,
31

st 
M

ar
ch

,

16
9.

91

GR
OS

S 
BL

OC
K

DE
PR

EC
IA

TI
ON

 / 
AM

OR
TI

SA
TI

ON
NE

T B
LO

CK
Pa

rti
cu

lar
s To

ta
l

2,
87

4.
42

41
.8

1
-

2,
91

6.
23

2,
59

0.
32

15
6.

00
-

2,
74

6.
32

16
9.

91

in
 la

c

A
m

o
u

n
ts

 in
 b

ra
ck

et
s 

re
p

re
se

n
t 

p
re

vi
o

u
s 

ye
ar

 n
u

m
b

er
s

Notes forming part of the financial statements

36



37

Notes forming part of the financial statements

As atAs at

March 31, 2013
in lac

March 31, 2012
in lac

Investments (At cost unless stated otherwise)

A. Trade

a) Investment in equity instruments

(i) of subsidiaries

(ii) of joint ventures - jointly controlled entities

(iii) of associates

b) Investment in partnership firms

Artson Engineering Limited
2,76,90,000 (March 31, 2012: 2,76,90,000)

equity shares of 1 each fully paid 276.90 276.90

TPL-TQA Quality Services (Mauritius) Pty Limited
16,800 (March 31, 2012: 16,800) equity shares of
EUR 1 each fully paid-up 11.37 11.37

TPL-TQA Quality Services South Africa (Pty) Limited
150,000 (March 31, 2012: 150,000) equity shares of
ZAR 1 each fully paid-up 9.34 9.34

TQ Services Europe GmbH
25,000 (March 31, 2012: Nil) shares of EUR 1 each fully paid 17.33 -

Al-Tawleed for Energy & Power Company (under liquidation)
300 (March 31, 2012: 300) cash shares of Saudi Arabian
Rials (SAR) 2000 per share equivalent to SAR 6,00,000 fully paid                    75.60 75.60
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments (75.60) (75.60)

- -
TEIL Projects Limited
49,99,997 (March 31, 2012: 49,99,997)

equity shares of 10 each fully paid 500.00 500.00

Virendra Garments Manufacturing Private Limited

1,200 (March 31, 2012: 1,200) shares of 100 each fully paid 1.20 1.20
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments (1.20) (1.20)

- -

Tata Dilworth Secord Meagher & Associates (Refer note below) 1.80 1.80
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments (1.80) (1.80)

- -

814.94 797.61

Note 14  Non-current investments



Notes forming part of the financial statements

As atAs at
March 31, 2013

in lac
March 31, 2012

in lac

B. Other investments
(i) Government securities

Total 1,114.99 1,097.90

Investments in Exim Bank
3 Nos.(March 31, 2012: 3 Nos.) 6.35% Exim Bond - 2013 of

100 lac each fully paid 302.35 302.35
Less: Amortisation of premium (2.30) (2.06)

300.05 300.29

Aggregate amount of listed and quoted Investments 276.90 276.90
Aggregate market value of listed and quoted investments 4,471.94 7,240.94
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 838.09 821.00

Note: Other details relating to investment in partnership firm

Note  14  Non-current investments (Contd...)

March 31, 2013
in lac

March 31, 2012
in lac

A. Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability - -

B. Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets

Depreciation 171.81 20.17

Provision for doubtful debts and advances 2,457.55 1,357.55

Provision for foreseeable losses 196.38 196.89

Provision of compensated absences and gratuity 657.68 305.07

Disallowance under section 43B 61.18 55.16

Others 25.07 14.21

Deferred tax assets (net) 3,569.67 1,949.05

Note  15  Deferred tax assets (net)

As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012

Name of the Name of
partner in of

profits of
the firm the firm

Meagher & Associates 1.20 40% Meagher & Associates 1.20 40%

Share Share of Name of Share Share of
firm each partner in of each

the firm Capital partner the firm Capital partner
in the in the

profits of

Tata Dilworth (i) Tata Projects Limited 1.80 60% (i) Tata Projects Limited 1.80 60%
Secord,

Meagher & (ii) Dilworth Secord, (ii)Dilworth Secord,
Associates
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 16  Long-term loans and advances (unsecured, considered good)

As atAs at
March 31, 2013

in lac
March 31, 2012

in lac

(a) Capital Advances 8.01 124.39

(b) Loan and advances to related parties (refer Note 31.15)
- Subsidiary company

Artson Engineering Limited
- Inter Corporate Deposit 1,800.00 -
- Loans 1,930.39 1,040.20

3,730.39 1,040.20
(c) Security deposits 1,012.52 717.50

(d) Deposits with government authorities 767.23 335.20

(e) Loans and advances to employees 57.49 66.76

(f ) Prepaid expenses 34.46 17.77

(g) Advance income tax [net of provision for tax 37,164.97 lac
(March 31, 2012 : Nil)] 288.01 -

(h) Advance payment of fringe benefit tax (net) 26.28 26.28

Total 5,924.39                   2,328.10

As atAs at
March 31, 2013

in lac
March 31, 2012

in lac

Long-term trade receivables * 1,363.26 1,274.70

* comprises retention money receivable beyond the normal operating cycle.

Total 1,363.26 1,274.70

Note  17  Other non-current assets



Notes forming part of the financial statements

As atAs at
March 31, 2013

in lac
March 31, 2012

in lac
Investments in mutual funds

Total 3,770.22 13,443.09

TATA Floater Fund - Daily Dividend - 3,951.42
Nil (March 31, 2012: 3,93,74,068.299) Units of 10 each

UTI Treasury Advantage Fund - Institutional Plan -
Daily Dividend Option- Reinvestment 321.72 1,238.96
32,165.526 (March 31, 2012: 1,23,869.480) Units of 1,000 each

HDFC Cash Management Fund - Treasury Advantage Plan -
Wholesale -  Daily Dividend, Option : Reinvest - 502.69
Nil (March 31, 2012: 50,11,118.389) Units of 10 each

IDFC Money Manager Fund - TP - Super Inst Plan C - Daily Dividend - 537.63
Nil (March 31, 2012: 53,75,534.500) Units of 10 each

Kotak Floater Long Term - Daily Dividend 315.52 950.24
31,30,268.264 (March 31, 2012: 94,27,142.889) Units of 10 each

DSP Blackrock Money Manager Fund - Institutional Plan - Daily Dividend - 431.29
Nil (March 31, 2012: 43,094.562) Units of 1,000 each

HSBC Floating Rate-Long Term Plan - Weekly Dividend 160.23 -
14,26,706.190 (March 31, 2012: Nil) Units of 10 each

JM Money Manager Fund - Super Plan - Daily Dividend - Reinvest 224.93 1,183.50
22,47,307.451 (March 31, 2012: 1,18,21,099.319) units of 10 each

Templeton India Ultra Short Bond Fund Institutional Plan -
Daily Dividend Reinvestment - 1,134.28
Nil (March 31, 2012: 1,13,30,265.817) Units of 10 each

Birla Sun Life Savings Fund - Daily Dividend - Regular Plan - Reinvestment 337.06 1,249.25
336,743.244 (March 31, 2012: 12,48,401.681) Units of 100 each

SBI - SHF - Ultra Short Term Fund - Institutional Plan - Daily Dividend - 989.15
Nil (March 31, 2012: 98,856.181) Units of 1,000 each

ICICI Prudential Flexible Income - Regular Plan - Daily Dividend 357.83 1,274.68
3,38,417.886 (March 31, 2012: 12,05,538.270) Units of 100 each

Tata Floater Fund - Plan A- Daily Dividend - Reinvestment 1,009.27 -
1,00,568.831 (March 31, 2012: Nil) Units of 1,000 each

HDFC Liquid Fund - Dividend - Daily Reinvestment 310.92 -
30,48,798.054 (March 31, 2012: Nil) Units of 10 each
Templeton India Ultra Short Bond Fund Super Institutional

Daily Dividend Plan 372.77 -
37,21,020.496 (March 31, 2012: Nil) Units of 10 each

DSP BlackRock Money Manager Fund-Regular-Daily Dividend Reinvest 127.88 -
12,578.639 (March 31, 2012: Nil) Units of 1,000 each

SBI Ultra Short Term Debt Fund – Regular Plan - Daily Dividend 214.33 -
21,405.554 (March 31, 2012: Nil) Units of 1,000 each

IDFC Money Manager Fund - Treasury Plan - Daily Dividend-(Regular Plan)                    17.76 -
1,76,337.294 (March 31, 2012: Nil) Units of 10 each

Note 18  Current investments (at lower of cost and fair value)
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note  19  Inventories  (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

As atAs at
March 31, 2013

in lac
March 31, 2012

in lac
(a) Raw materials 1,692.19 2,677.84
(b) Work-in-process 302.19 548.55
(c) Finished goods 69.02 78.92
(d) Stores and spares 32.29 11.50
(e) Contracts-in-progress * 21,827.87 7,279.19

* includes Goods-in-transit 2,979.20 -

Total 23,923.56 10,596.00

Note  20 Trade receivables

As atAs at
March 31, 2013

in lac
March 31, 2012

in lac
Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months
from the date they were due for payment

Other Trade receivables

Total 228,011.16 190,262.21

Unsecured, considered good 19,777.08 22,307.69
Doubtful 6,697.19 3,784.17

26,474.27 26,091.86
Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables (6,697.19) (3,784.17)

19,777.08 22,307.69

Unsecured, considered good # 208,234.08 167,954.52

# includes retention money receivable 99,340.63 lac (March 31, 2012 : 83,666.89 lac)

Note  21  Cash and cash equivalents

As atAs at
March 31, 2013

in lac
March 31, 2012

in lac
(a) Cash on hand 23.15 22.88

(b) Balances with banks:

- In current accounts 8,645.81 13,362.66

- In EEFC accounts 61.20 668.36

- In demand deposit accounts (refer Note below) 342.40 35,200.00

Note:

Deposit accounts include Nil (March 31, 2012 : Nil) demand deposits with remaining maturity of more than
12 months from the balance sheet date.

Total 9,072.56 49,253.90



Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note  22  Short-term loans and advances (Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

As at

Total 94,866.00 50,595.28

As at

(a) Loan and advances to related parties (refer Note 31.15)

- Subsidiary company
Artson Engineering Limited

- Inter-corporate deposits - 1,600.00

- Loans - 890.20

- Project related advances 1,126.80 138.35

1,126.80 2,628.55
(b) Security deposits 574.63 420.84
(c) Loans and advances to employees 175.89 161.81
(d) Prepaid expenses 640.13 454.03
(e) Balances with government authorities

CENVAT credit receivable 29.21 146.26
VAT credit receivable 597.24 400.97
Sales tax deducted at source 6,590.15 4,718.23
Customs duty refund receivable 1,169.41 -

8,386.01 5,265.46

(f ) Inter-corporate deposits 23,500.00 12,000.00
(g) Mobilisation advance 46,666.00 25,486.18
(h) Other project related advances

Unsecured, considered good 13,796.54 4,178.41
Doubtful 400.00 400.00

14,196.54 4,578.41
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (400.00) (400.00)

13,796.54 4,178.41

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
in lacin lac
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note   23   Other current assets (unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

As at

(a) Unbilled revenue 1,743.28 7,169.63
(b) Accruals :

157.06 706.23
(c) Others

1,859.85 1,212.40

Total 3,760.19 9,088.26

As at

(i) Interest accrued on deposits 5.52 191.89
(ii) Interest accrued on investments 14.87 14.87
(iii) Interest accrued on inter corporate deposits 56.19 221.01
(iv) Interest accrued on loans to subsidiary

- unsecured, considered good - 193.16
- doubtful 133.02 -

(v) Interest accrued on mobilisation advance given 80.48 85.30

290.08 706.23
Less: Provision for doubtful interest accrued on loans to subsidiary (133.02) -

(i) Insurance and other claims receivables
Unsecured, considered good 32.34 19.66
Doubtful 73.25 73.25

105.59 92.91
Less: Provision for doubtful claims (73.25) (73.25)

32.34 19.66
(ii) Contractually reimbursable expenses 1,827.51 1,192.74

March 31, 2013
in lac

March 31, 2012
in lac



Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note  24   Revenue from operations

For the year ended

Revenue from operations (Gross) 359,010.57 307,658.45

Total 348,054.62 301,796.65

Total 349,959.48 298,582.88

Total 8,353.51 8,633.85

Total 235.81 214.70

Total 461.77 227.02

For the year ended

(a) Income from contracts (refer note (i) below) 349,959.48 298,582.88
(b) Income from services (refer note (ii) below) 8,353.51 8,633.85
(c) Income from sale of goods (refer note (iii) below) 235.81 214.70
(d) Other operating revenues (refer note (iv) below) 461.77 227.02

Less: Indirect taxes and duties 10,955.95 5,861.80

Notes:
(i) Income from contracts comprises :

- Supply of contract equipment and materials 223,024.04 196,442.67
- Civil and erection works 126,935.44 102,140.21

(ii) Income from services comprises :
- Quality inspection services 8,330.49 8,592.66
- Manpower services 23.02 41.19

(iii) Income from sale of goods comprises :
- Sale of BWRO units 235.81 214.70

(iv) Other operating revenues comprises :

- Sale of scrap 461.77 227.02

March 31, 2013
in lac

March 31, 2012
in lac
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note  25   Other income

For the year ended

Total 6,109.76 5,225.29

Total 3,851.43 2,516.58

Total 692.29 418.19

For the year ended

(a) Interest income (refer Note (i) below) 3,851.43 2,516.58
(b) Dividend income :

from current investments
- mutual funds 1,096.66 1,465.56

from long-term investments
- subsidiaries 248.79 243.98

(c) Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translations 220.59 580.98
(d) Other non-operating income (refer Note (ii) below) 692.29 418.19

Notes:
(i) Interest Income comprises :

- Interest from banks on deposits 681.84 689.54
- Interest on inter corporate deposits 2,144.35 1,103.66
- Interest income from long-term investments 19.05 19.05
- Interest income on mobilisation advance given 816.11 315.61
- Interest on loans to subsidiary 86.96 334.58
- Other interest 103.12 54.14

(ii) Other non-operating income comprises :
- Hire charges 353.87 182.77
- Liabilities no longer required written back 223.14 -
- Miscellaneous income 115.28 235.42

March 31, 2013
in lac

March 31, 2012
in lac

Note 26  Contract execution expenses

For the year ended

Total 290,500.35 239,877.38

For the year ended

(a) Cost of supplies/erection and civil works * 285,052.59 235,491.01

(b) Engineering fees 2,160.17 1,395.90

(c) Insurance premium 1,826.16 1,326.17

(d) Bank guarantee and letter of credit charges 1,461.43 1,664.30

* includes increase / (decrease) in excise duty of 4.84 lac (previous year:( 2.60 lac)) on finished goods

March 31, 2013
in lac

March 31, 2012
in lac



Note 27 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-process and contracts-in-
progress

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 28  Employee benefits expense

For the year ended

Total 24,200.45 20,291.28

For the year ended

(a) Salaries and wages 20,940.70 17,775.21

(b) Contribution to provident and other funds 2,203.97 1,650.93

(c) Staff welfare expenses 1,055.78 865.14

March 31, 2013
in lac

March 31, 2012
in lac

For the year ended

Inventories at the end of the year

22,199.08 7,906.66

Inventories at the beginning of the year

7,906.66 6,132.39

Net (increase)/decrease (14,292.42) (1,774.27)

For the year ended

Finished goods 69.02 78.92

Work-in-process 302.19 548.55

Contracts-in-progress 21,827.87 7,279.19

Finished goods 78.92 51.36

Work-in-process 548.55 282.81

Contracts-in-progress 7,279.19 5,798.22

March 31, 2013
in lac

March 31, 2012
in lac
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 29  Other expenses

For the year ended For the year ended

Consumption of stores and spare parts 291.84 139.87
Rent 2,003.76 1,480.62
Repairs and maintenance

- Building 1.87 134.45
- Machinery 297.29 208.35
- Others 538.90 374.19

Processing charges 765.55 326.62
Power and fuel 776.63 572.01
Rates and taxes 168.52 105.97
Insurance 71.41 74.46
Motor vehicle expenses 2,022.37 1,459.94
Traveling and conveyance 2,187.45 1,762.92
Legal and professional 1,450.47 1,163.28
Payment to auditors (refer note below) 37.40 26.70
Communication expenses 482.35 415.62
Printing and stationery 261.71 201.60
Staff recruitment and training expenses 156.32 92.76
Business development expenditure 176.14 299.74
Bank charges 50.92 92.81
Freight and handling charges 393.43 158.27
Amortisation of premium and provision for diminution
in the value of investments 0.24 0.24
Bad debts - 13.97
Provision for doubtful trade receivables 3,364.65 437.87

3,364.65 451.84
Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables reversed (451.63) (133.73)

2,913.02 318.11
Advances written off 254.41 -
Provision for doubtful loans and advances 133.02 -

387.43 -
Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances reversed - (100.42)

387.43 (100.42)
Agency commission 49.84 45.18
Brand equity contribution 576.47 753.92
Loss on sale of fixed assets (net) 19.00 47.52
Miscellaneous expenses 991.13 848.47

Note:
Payment to auditors comprises (net of service tax)
(a) To Statutory auditors

Audit fees 20.00 15.00
Tax audit fees 2.00 2.00
Limited review fees 6.00 6.00
Other services 6.18 3.52
Reimbursement of expenses 0.59 0.18

(b) To Cost auditor for cost audit 2.63 -

March 31, 2013
in lac

March 31, 2012
in lac

Total 17,071.46 11,003.20

Total 37.40 26.70



Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 30 Finance costs

March 31, 2012
in lac

For the year ended
March 31, 2013

in lac

For the year ended

(a) Interest expense on :
(i) Borrowings 124.11 177.11
(ii) Mobilisation advance received 2,693.86 2,023.33
(iii) Others 162.97 6.57

(b) Other borrowing costs 35.81 -

Total 3,016.75 2,207.01

Note 31 Additional notes to the financial statements
31.1      Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

For the year ended
March 31, 2013

in lac
March 31, 2012

in lac

For the year ended

(i) Contingent liabilities:

(ii) Commitments

(a) Claim against the Company not acknowledged
as debt

Sales tax matters under dispute 4,883.17 3,958.78

Third party claims from disputes relating to contracts 60.00 830.00

(b) Guarantees

Performance and other bank guarantees issued by
banks on behalf of the Company 353,138.76 330,033.22

Corporate guarantees (refer note below) 19,929.12 16,600.93

(c) Others - liquidated damages Amounts Amounts
indeterminate indeterminate

(d) Bills discounted 460.48 -

Note: Includes 6,000 lac (March 31,2012 : 6,000 lac)
given on behalf of its subsidiary, Artson Engineering
Limited and remaining outstanding
as at March 31,2013.

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed
on capital account and not provided for [net of advance

8.01 lac (March 31, 2012 : 124.39 lac)] 69.73 497.16
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31.2 Details on derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposures
a) Outstanding forward exchange contracts entered into by the Company as on March 31,2013

Amounts in brackets represent previous year numbers

Currency Amount (in Million) Buy/Sell Cross Currency

Euro 1.28 Buy Rupees
(-) (-) (-)

USD 0.52 Buy Rupees
(-) (-) (-)

b) The year end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or
otherwise are given below:

As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012

Currency
(In Million)

1 Short term borrowings USD 1.05 569.77 - -
EUR 1.73 1,205.37 - -
AED 5.41 800.29 0.85 117.34

2 Receivables AED 24.67 3,645.50 31.56 4,370.47
KES 23.06 146.43 - -

WON 85.14 41.72 10.79 4.86
QAR 0.37 54.72 0.14 20.19
EUR 0.10 69.61 0.08 51.96
ZAR 2.43 142.93 0.42 27.86
SAR 0.57 83.69 0.59 83.69
SGD - - 0.02 7.28

3 Payables QAR 0.002 0.26 0.19 27.23
AED 12.52 1,850.38 23.69 3,281.60
SGD 0.07 29.66 0.001 0.47
SAR 0.24 34.39 0.24 34.39

WON 28.56 14.00 - -
KES 300.22 210.02 - -

4 Interest accrued on buyer's credit USD 0.002 1.33 - -
EUR 0.004 2.56 - -

5 Cash and cash equivalents QAR 0.02 3.16 0.37 51.27
SGD 0.01 4.95 0.02 7.27
AED 2.38 351.96 3.78 522.91
USD 0.42 228.87 1.00 528.71

WON 294.92 143.98 188.69 84.91
KES 214.15 1,359.86 - -

Foreign
Currency Currency in lac

(In Million)

Foreign
in lac

c) The net difference in foreign exchange credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss is 220.59 lac (March
31,2012 : 580.98 lac).

Notes forming part of the financial statements



Notes forming part of the financial statements

31.3 Value of imports on CIF basis:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2013

in lac
March 31, 2012

in lac

(i) Project related equipment and materials 24,930.11 5,494.07
(ii) Capital goods 3,697.09 1,443.43

(i) Expenditure incurred on foreign projects (including
professional and consultancy fees) 2,402.03 16,756.02

(ii) Travel 813.84 412.57

(iii) Interest 64.84 39.98

(iv) IncomeTax 5.31 64.14

(i) Erection and engineering services 5,652.75 19,755.54
(ii) Interest 6.75 -
(iii) Dividend 248.79 243.98
(iv) Miscellaneous income 3.92 -

(i) Steel 16,584.38 9,091.57
(ii) Zinc 1,676.32 967.45
(iii) Others 181.65 183.58

The consumption figures shown above are after adjustment of excess and shortages found on physical
verification.

in lac %

a) - -

b)

(i) Raw Materials 18,442.35 100
(10,242.60) (100)

(ii) Spare parts 291.84 100
(139.87) (100)

Amounts in brackets represent previous year numbers

Total 18,442.35 10,242.60

As at March 31, 2013

Imported
Indigenous

31.4 Expenditure in foreign currency:

31.5 Earnings in foreign exchange:

31.6 Raw materials consumed

31.7 Details of consumption of imported and indigenous items:
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

31.8 (i) Disclosures required to be made under Accounting Standard (AS-7) Construction Contracts

(ii) In line with accepted practice in construction business, certain revisions to costs and billing of
previous years which have crystallized during the year have been dealt with in the current year.
The Statement of Profit and Loss for the year includes debits aggregating 2,139.50 lac (March 31,
2012 : 2,717.57 lac - credits) on account of changes in estimates.

) In the year 2007-08, under a sanctioned scheme of the Board for Industrial and Financial
Reconstruction (BIFR), the Company became a strategic investor in Artson Engineering Limited
(Artson), a Public Limited Company listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange by acquiring 75% of the
equity share capital of Artson. In terms of the rehabilitation scheme sanctioned by BIFR, the
Company is exempt from the provisions of Section 58A and 372A and relevant provision of the
Companies Act, 1956 and the regulation there under for the purpose of providing loan and
guarantees and subscribing to the equity capital of Artson. Artson is in the process of making an
application to the BIFR seeking an extention of the sanctioned scheme of rehabilitation.

(ii) The Company has an investment of 276.90 lac in Artson, has loaned amounts aggregating
3,730.39 lac which are outstanding as on March 31, 2013 and given project related advances

aggregating 1,126.80 lac.The management has extended the moratorium for repayment of loans
for a further period, with repayments falling due in five installments commencing March 31, 2017.
Although Artson’s net worth has been fully eroded, in view of the continued operational support
extended by the Company to Artson,Management is of the view that no provision is required on this
account at this stage.

(iii) In view of the foregoing, as a prudent measure, interest income in respect of loans given to Artson
aggregating 282.79 lac has not been recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Note 22 -Short-term loans and advances includes 610.00 lac (March 31, 2012 610.00 lac) on account
of taxes deducted at source on inter state supplies under applicable Value Added Tax Acts. The
Company has contested the deduction in the applicable judicial forum and is confident of a favorable
outcome in the matter.

The Company’s tower manufacturing facility located at Nagpur is entitled to certain incentives under
“Package Scheme of Incentives – 2007”which includes,Industrial Promotion Subsidy (IPS) equivalent of
30% of eligible investments, limited to 384.93 lac, which will be sanctioned and disbursed as per
modalities to be determined by Government of Maharashtra. Benefit will be accounted on such final
determination.

Provision for taxation includes 5.31 lac (March 31,2012 : 64.14 lac) paid / payable in other countries.

31.9

31.10

31.11

31.12

(i

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2013

in lac
March 31, 2012

in lac

Contract revenue recognised during the year 349,959.48 298,582.88

Aggregate of contract costs incurred and recognised profits
(less recognized losses) upto the reporting date 1,510,641.68 1,243,679.00

Advances received for contracts-in-progress 92,457.78 68,941.31

Retention money for contracts-in-progress 100,703.89 84,941.59

Gross amount due from customers for contract work 20,591.95 14,448.82



Notes forming part of the financial statements

31.13 Employee benefits
a) Defined Benefit Plans

The following table sets out the status of the defined benefit schemes and the amounts recognised in
the financial statements:

( In lac)

Year ended March 31 2012Year ended March 31 2013

Post
retirement

medical
benefits

Post
retirement

benefits

Particulars
Gratuity Pension Gratuity Pension medical

I Components of employer's expense

II Net asset / (liability) recognised in the

Balance Sheet

IIIChange in defined benefit
obligation (DBO) during the year
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

31.13 Employee benefits (Contd...)

( In lac)

The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the current portfolio of assets, investment
strategy and market scenario. In order to protect the capital and optimise returns within acceptable
risk parameters, the plan assets are well diversified.

Year ended March 31 2012Year ended March 31 2013

Post
retirement

benefits

Post
Particulars retirement

medical
benefits

Gratuity Pension Gratuity Pension medical

Plan assets at beginning of the year 1,447.72 - - 1,191.27 - -

Expected return on plan assets 123.06 - - 98.28 - -

Actual company contributions 496.06 37.80 0.46 367.64 20.37 -

Actuarial gain / (loss) 34.63 - - 9.05 - -

Benefits paid (182.14) (37.80) (0.46) (218.52) (20.37) -

Plan assets at the end of the year 1,919.32 - - 1,447.72 - -

Actual return on plan assets 157.68 - - 107.33 - -

Funded withTata AIG Life Insurance Co.Ltd. 1,919.32 - - 1,447.72 - -

Discount rate 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 8.50% 8.50% 8.50%

Expected rate of return on plan assets 8.00% - - 8.50% - -

Salary escalation 5.00% - - 5.00% - -

Attrition 10% - - 10% - -

Mortality Indian LIC
Assured (1994-96)

Lives Ultimate
Mortality
(2006-08)
ULTTable

IV Change in fair values of assets
during the year

V The major categories of plan assets

VI Actuarial assumptions
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

31.14 Segment Information



Notes forming part of the financial statements

31.14 Segment information (contd...)

1 Revenue 339,505.85 8,313.32 235.45 - 348,054.62
(292,989.61) (8,592.34) (214.70) - (301,796.65)

2 Inter segment revenue 470.50 470.50 -
(283.67) (283.67) -

339,505.85 8,783.82 235.45 470.50 348,054.62
(292,989.61) (8,876.01) (214.70) (283.67) (301,796.65)

4 Segment result 17,145.85 2,168.56 6.81 - 19,321.22
(23,671.38) (2,768.79) (1.34) - (26,441.51)

5 Unallocable expenses (net) 10,884.92
(7,076.79)

6 Finance costs 3,016.75
(2,207.01)

7 Operating income (4-5-6) 5,419.55
(17,157.71)

8 Other income (net) 6,109.76
(5,225.29)

10 Tax expense 3,041.70
(6,912.59)

Segment assets 348,983.30 3,129.98 152.47 352,265.75
(266,935.60) (3,143.84) (93.24) (270,172.68)

Unallocable assets 45,494.53
(75,044.40)

Segment liabilities 321,303.82 366.15 41.49 321,711.46
(273,379.51) (558.96) (13.34) (273,951.81)

Unallocable liabilities 6,102.44
(8,621.93)

Total liabilities

Capital expenditure
(allocable) 8,226.36 - - 8,226.36

(4,267.67) - - (4,267.67)
Capital expenditure
(unallocable) 2,470.81

(635.32)
Depreciation and
amortisation (allocable) 2,869.92 21.49 - 2,891.41

(2,046.31) (2.75) (0.05) (2,049.11)
Depreciation and
amortisation (unallocable) 804.72

(742.63)

Business segments Total

Particulars EPC Services Others Eliminations

9 Profit before taxes (7+8) 11,529.31
(22,383.00)

11 Profit for the year (9-10) 8,487.61
(15,470.41)

Total assets 397,760.28
(345,217.08)

327,813.90
(282,573.74)

Other information
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Revenue - for the
year ended

March 31, 2013 as at March 31, 2013 ended March 31, 2013

Total 348,054.62 397,760.28 10,697.17

(301,796.65) (345,217.08) (4,902.99)

Capital expenditure
Geographical segment Segment assets incurred during the year

Domestic (allocable) 342,401.87 345,830.75 8,100.30

(282,227.46) (264,308.11) (4,264.13)

Domestic (unallocable) - 45,494.53 2,470.81

- (75,044.40) (635.32)

Overseas 5,652.75 6,435.00 126.06

(19,569.19) (5,864.57) (3.54)

Amounts in brackets represents previous year numbers.

Notes forming part of the financial statements

31.14 Segment information (contd...)

Description of relationship Names of related parties

(i) Entity holding more than 20% TheTata Power Company Limited

(ii) Subsidiaries Artson Engineering Limited

TPL-TQA Quality Services (Mauritius) Pty Limited

TPL-TQA Quality Services South Africa (Proprietary) Limited

TQ Services Europe GmbH

(iii) Jointly controlled entities (JCE) AlTawleed for Energy & Power Company

TEIL Projects Limited

(iv) Associates Virendra Garments Manufacturing Private Limited

(v) Key Management Personnel Mr.Vinayak K Deshpande,Managing Director (w.e.f.July 1,2011)

Mr A K Misra,Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer
(upto September 30,2011)

Mr A K Mathur,Executive Director (upto September 30,2011)

(KMP)

31.15 Related party transactions

Details of related parties:

( In lac)



Notes forming part of the financial statements

Entity
Particulars holding Subsidiaries JCE KMP Total

more
than 20%

Contract execution expenses - 1,425.14 - - 1,425.14
(-) (463.57) (-) (-) (463.57)

Revenue from operations 1,994.64 889.36 - 2,884.00
(1,652.79) (620.75) (-) (-) (2,273.54)

Interest received - 86.96 - - 86.96
(-) (334.58) (-) (-) (334.58)

Interest expenses on borrowings 30.82 - - - 30.82
(106.03) (-) (-) (-) (106.03)

Dividend received - 248.79 - - 248.79
(-) (243.98) (-) (-) (243.98)

Proposed dividend 483.75 - - - 483.75
(967.50) (-) (-) (-) (967.50)

Investments - 17.33 - - 17.33
(-) (-) (200.00) (-) (200.00)

Loan and advance given to
subsidiary (net) - 1,188.45 - - 1,188.45

(-) (355.28) (-) (-) (355.28)

Provision for doubtful loans
and advances - 133.02 - - 133.02

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

Redemption of Debentures 937.50 - - - 937.50
(937.50) (-) (-) (-) (937.50)

Contractually reimbursable
expenses - 239.62 40.63 - 280.25

(-) (170.41) (5.80) (-) (176.21)

Remuneration - - - 293.93 293.93
(-) (-) (-) (341.71) (341.71)

Guarantees given 4,156.80 - - 4,156.80
(-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

in lac

Details of related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2013 and balances outstanding
as at March 31,2013

31.15 Related party transactions (Contd...)
Details of related parties:

58



59

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Entity
Particulars holding Subsidiaries JCE KMP Total

more
than 20%

Balances outstanding at the
end of the year

Trade receivables 2,692.66 209.12 83.69 - 2,985.47
(2,615.97) (95.57) (83.69) (-) (2,795.23)

Loans and advances - 4,857.19 - - 4,857.19
(-) (3,668.74) (-) (-) (3,668.74)

Trade payables 423.93 932.30 34.39 - 1,390.62
(608.27) (63.63) (34.39) (-) (706.29)

Contractually reimbursable expenses - 239.62 40.63 - 280.25
(-) (170.41) (5.80) (-) (176.21)

Provision for doubtful loans and
advances - 133.02 - - 133.02

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

Unbilled revenue 2.96 - - - 2.96
(-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

Interest accrued on loans to subsidiary - - - - -
(-) (193.16) (-) (-) (193.16)

Interest accrued on trade payables
and mobilisation advance received - - - - (-)

(39.95) (-) (-) (-) (39.95)

Proposed Dividend 483.75 - - - 483.75
(967.50) (-) (-) (-) (967.50)

Commission payable - - - 150.00 150.00
(-) (-) (-) (180.00) (180.00)

Guarantees 2,004.56 6,000.00 - (-) 8,004.56
(2,439.93) (6,000.00) (-) (-) (8,439.93)

Amounts in brackets represents previous year numbers.

in lac

Details of related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2013 and balances outstanding
as at March 31,2013

31.15 Related party transactions (Contd...)



Notes forming part of the financial statements

31.16 Details of leasing arrangements
Operating lease : As lessee

31.17 Earnings per Share (EPS):

31.18 Interest In joint ventures

i) The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases for premises
(residences, office, etc.). The leasing arrangements, which are not non-cancellable range generally
between 11 months to 9 years or longer and are usually renewable by mutual consent on mutually
agreeable terms.The aggregate lease rents payable are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year as Rent under Note 29 - Other expenses.

ii) With regard to certain other non-cancellable operating leases for premises, the future minimum lease
rental are as follows.

As at
March 31, 2012

in lac

Not later than one year 666.03 194.71

Later than one year and not later than five years 1,537.85 634.67

Later than five years 419.24 -

March 31, 2012

a) Profit for the year ( in lac) 8,487.61 15,470.41
b) Weighted Average number of Equity Shares of

100 each outstanding during the year (No's) 2,025,000 2,025,000

c) Basic and diluted ( )  (a/b) 419.14 763.97

As at
March 31, 2013

in lac

2,623.12 829.38

For the year ended
March 31, 2013

Earning per share

For the year ended

The Company has interests in the following joint ventures - Jointly controlled entities (JCE)

TEIL Projects Limited 50% 140.18 140.18 167.20 226.26 - -

India (150.60) (150.60) (54.40) (160.90) (-) (-)

As per Audited Accounts
as on March 31, 2013

M/s Al-Tawleed for
Energy & Power Co.
(under liquidation) 30% 1,705.58 1,705.58 - - - -

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (1,649.63) (1,649.63) (-) (-) (-) (-)
As per Management
Accounts as on
December 31, 2012

Amounts in brackets represents previous year numbers.

60

in lac

in lac



61

Notes forming part of the financial statements

31.19 Details of provisions

The Company has made provisions for various contractual obligations and disputed liabilities based on its
assessment of the amount it estimates to incur to meet such obligations,details of which are given below:

Particulars As at Additions Utilisation Reversal
April 1,2012 (withdrawn as no

longer required)

Provision for warranty - - - - -
(256.00) (-) (-) (256.00) (-)

Provision for foreseeable
losses on contracts 606.85 496.09 525.18 - 577.76

(-) (606.85) (-) (-) (606.85)

Amounts in brackets represents previous year numbers.

As at
March 31,2013

Total 606.85 496.09 525.18 - 577.76

(256.00) (606.85) (-) (256.00) (606.85)

31.20 Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the
current year's classification / disclosure.

Director Director

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Prasad R Menon

Rajgopal Swami Dr A Raja Mogili

Vinayak K Deshpande
Managing

Place : Mumbai
Date  : May 22, 2013

in lac
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TATA PROJECTS LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Auditors' Responsibility

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of (the
“Company”), its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities (the Company, its subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities constitute“the Group”),which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2013,the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended,and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2. The Company's Management is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India.This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement,whether due to fraud or error.

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Company's preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

4. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on the financial statements / financial information
of subsidiaries and a jointly controlled entity and read with comments in respect of certain entities referred
to in paragraphs 6 and 7 below ,respectively,the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet,of the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31,2013;

TATA PROJECTS LIMITED
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(b) in the case of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit of the Group for the year
ended on

5. The consolidated financial statements do not include the Group's share of net profit/loss in respect of an
Associate [Refer Note 2.2 (d)], which could not be determined, as the Management has not obtained the
financial statements of this Associate. The value of investment in such Associate has been fully provided
for in the consolidated financial statements of the Company. Based on the explanations provided by
Management, it is expected that there would be no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements consequent to any possible adjustments in respect of the aforesaid entities where no financial
statements are available,since the size of these entities in the context of the Group is not material.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

6. We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of three subsidiaries and a jointly

controlled entity, whose financial statements / financial information reflect total assets (net) of 10,206.16

lac as at March 31, 2013, total revenues of 12,767.97 lac and net cash inflows amounting to 1,444.04 lac
for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial
statements / financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished
to us by the Management and our opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates, is based solely on the reports of the
other auditors.

7. The consolidated financial statements include the unaudited financial statements/financial information of
a subsidiary and a jointly controlled entity, whose financial statements/financial information reflect total

assets (net) of 1,716.19 lac as at March 31, 2013, total revenues of 14.39 lac and net cash inflows

amounting to 6.17 lac for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. Our opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts included in respect of the subsidiary and
jointly controlled entity,is based solely on such unaudited financial statements/financial information.

Based on the explanations provided by Management,it is expected that there would be no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements consequent to any possible adjustments in respect of the
aforesaid entities where unaudited financial statements are available, since the size of these entities in the
context of the Group is not material.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters.

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No.008072S)

K Rajasekhar
Place :Secunderabad Partner

Date : (Membership No.23341)

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS

May 22,2013

that date;and
(c) in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement,of the cash flows of the Group for the year ended

on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

Other Matter



Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2013st

As at
Note No. in lac

(a) Share capital 3 2,025.00 2,025.00
(b) Reserves and surplus 4 63,938.58 59,035.13

65,963.58 61,060.13
1,048.50 293.77

(a) Long-term borrowings 5 48.85 97.86
(b) Other long-term liabilities 6 1,096.78 1,135.40
(c) Long-term provisions 7 1,674.83 846.08

2,820.46 2,079.34

(a) Short-term borrowings 8 6,996.85 2,478.32
(b) Trade payables 9 226,130.92 207,529.40
(c) Other current liabilities 10 98,561.10 74,215.84
(d) Short-term provisions 11 2,338.69 4,096.26

334,027.56 288,319.82

(a) Fixed assets
Tangible assets 12 21,771.54 15,472.37
Intangible assets 13 171.88 287.39
Capital work-in-progress 1,474.31 803.73

(b) Goodwill on consolidation (Refer Note 31.14) 343.77 343.73
(c) Non-current investments 14 300.05 300.29
(d) Deferred tax assets (net) 15 3,569.67 1,947.85
(e) Long-term loans and advances 16 2,629.07 1,414.73
(f ) Other non-current assets 17 2,035.21 1,434.79

32,295.50 22,004.88

(a) Current investments 18 3,785.78 13,541.93
(b) Inventories 19 24,939.54 11,568.27
(c) Trade receivables 20 231,634.76 195,374.79
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 21 11,233.43 49,964.56
(e) Short-term loans and advances 22 95,871.83 49,813.16
(f ) Other current assets 23 4,099.26 9,485.47

371,564.60 329,748.18

Corporate information 1

2

As at
in lac

1 Shareholders' funds

2 Minority interest
3 Non-current liabilities

4 Current liabilities

Total 403,860.10 351,753.06
B ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

2 Current assets

Total 403,860.10 351,753.06

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Basis of consolidation and significant
accounting policies
See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

A. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
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For the year ended
Note No. March 31, 2012

For the year ended
March 31, 2013

in lac

1 Revenue from operations (gross) 371,265.28 314,977.65
Less: Indirect taxes and duties 11,317.66 6,237.48

(a) Contract execution expenses 26 296,616.70 243,689.65
(b) Cost of materials consumed (refer Note 31.2) 21,037.96 11,255.60
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods,

work-in-process and contracts-in-progress 27 (14,425.47) (1,793.60)
(d) Employee benefits expense 28 25,227.91 21,440.50
(e) Other expenses 29 18,903.77 11,645.44

12,586.75 22,502.58

4 Finance costs 30 3,375.00 2,426.31

5 Depreciation and amortisation expense 12, 13 3,885.10 3,012.21

6 Other income 25                         5,803.02 4,704.06

(a) Current tax 5,810.79 7,585.95
(b) Taxation of earlier years (262.98) -
(c) Deferred tax (1,621.82) (470.44)

Basic and diluted ( ) (refer Note 31.13) 306.87 709.46
Corporate information 1
Basis of consolidation and
significant accounting policies 2

in lac

Revenue from operations (net) 24 359,947.62 308,740.17

2 Expenses

Total 347,360.87 286,237.59
3 Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and

amortisation (EBITDA) (1-2)

7 Profit before tax (3-4-5+6) 11,129.67 21,768.12

8 Tax expense

Net tax expense 3,925.99 7,115.51
9 Profit after tax and before minority interest (7-8) 7,203.68 14,652.61
10 Minority interest 989.61 286.08
11 Profit for the year (9-10) 6,214.07 14,366.53

Earnings per equity share (of 100 each)

See accompanying notes forming part of the
consolidated financial statements

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2013st
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Director Managing Director
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Date  : May 22, 2013



Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2013st

For the year ended
March 31, 2012

in lac

Profit before tax 11,129.67 21,768.12

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 3,885.10 3,012.21

Finance costs 3,375.00 2,426.31

Interest Income (3,780.22) (2,190.59)

Dividend income from current investments (1,099.65) (1,470.87)

Amortisation of premium and provision for diminution

in the value of investments 0.24 (75.36)

Provision for foreseeable losses on contracts (29.09) 606.85

Loss on sale of fixed assets 79.04 55.78

Liabilities no longer required written back (223.14) -

Net unrealised exchange (gain) / loss 13.80 (86.23)

2,221.08 2,278.10

Operating profit before working capital changes 13,350.75 24,046.22

Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in Operating Assets:

- Trade receivables (36,564.36) 53.79

- Loans and advances (35,395.92) (1,100.95)

- Other assets 4,730.94 (1,411.46)

- Inventories (13,371.27) (2,510.14)

Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in
Operating Liabilities:

- Trade payables, Other liabilties and Provisions 44,955.40 23,347.72

(35,645.21) 18,378.96

Cash (used in) / generated from operations (22,294.46) 42,425.18

Net income tax paid (6,783.05) (7,498.65)

(29,077.51) 34,926.53

Capital expenditure on fixed assets including

capital advances (10,787.16) (5,063.95)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 85.12 91.45

Purchase of current investments (62,727.06) (80,000.53)

Proceeds from redemption of current investments 73,582.86 91,379.50

Interest received 4,134.59 1,833.49

Inter-corporate deposits given (18,050.00) (9,000.00)

Inter-corporate deposits repaid 6,550.00 5,500.00

For the year ended
March 31, 2013

in lac

Net cash flows (used in) / from operating activities

Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities (7,211.65) 4,739.96

Changes in working capital:

A.Cash Flow from Operating Activities

B. Cash flow from investing activities
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Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2013st

In terms of our report attached

Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Prasad R Menon Vinayak K Deshpande

K Rajasekhar Rajgopal Swami Dr A Raja Mogili

Director Managing Director

Company SecretaryPartner Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date  : May 22, 2013

Place : Secunderabad
Date  : May 22, 2013

For the year ended
March 31, 2012

in lac

Repayment of debenture (1,125.00) (1,125.00)
Repayment of long-term borrowings (26.15) (9.12)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 4,518.53 741.59
Finance costs (3,446.91) (2,429.65)
Dividend paid including tax on dividend (2,353.51) (2,353.51)

(2,433.04) (5,175.69)

(38,722.20) 34,490.80

49,964.56 15,484.06
Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign

cess on restatement of foreign
currency Cash and cash equivalents (8.93) (10.30)

11,233.43 49,964.56

1 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the
Accounting Standard - 3 (AS 3) on Cash Flow Statements.

2 Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

March 31, 2012

i in lac

(i) Cash 43.51 28.18

(ii) Balance with banks
- in current accounts 10,684.40 13,955.91

- in EEFC account 61.20 668.36

- in deposit accounts 444.32 35,312.11

Cash and cash equivalents included in Note 21 11,233.43 49,964.56

3. Comparative figures of the previous year have been regrouped wherever necessary to compare with those
of current year.

For the year ended
March 31, 2013

in lac

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
(refer Note 2 below)

Note:

As at
March 31, 2013

n lac

As at

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities



Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 1 Corporate information

Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of accounting and preparation of consolidated financial statements

2.2 Principles of consolidation

Tata Projects Limited (the Parent Company) and its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities (together the
'Group') are in the business of executing Engineering,Procurement and Construction (EPC) contracts in various
infrastructure fields, comprising power generation, transmission, distribution and related ancillary services
including manufacturing activity, telecommunications, civil construction and other allied engineering and
quality services.

Name Country of

As at March 31,2012

Artson Engineering Limited India 75

TPL-TQA Quality Services
(Mauritius) Pty Limited Mauritius 70

TPL-TQA Quality Services South Africa
(Proprietary) Limited South Africa 60

TQ Services Europe GmbH
(with effect from May 23,2012) Germany -

b) Interest in JointVentures - Jointly controlled entities

Name of the JointVenture Country of
Percentage Holding

As at
March 31,2012

AlTawleed For Energy &
Power Co.Jointly controlled

TEIL Projects Limited India 50

The Group’s interest in joint ventures is accounted for using proportionate consolidation.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting
Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention.The accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements are consistent with those followed in the previous
year.

a) The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard
21 (AS 21) - “Consolidated Financial Statements” , Accounting Standard 23 (AS 23) - “Accounting for
Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements”and Accounting Standard 27 (AS 27) -
“Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures”notified by the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules,2006.

The subsidiaries considered in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are:

of the subsidiary
Incorporation

Incorporation

Kingdom of 30
entity Saudi Arabia

Percentage of ownership interest

30

As at March 31,2013

75

70

60

100

As at
March 31,2013

50
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies(Contd...)

2.3 Use of estimates

2.4 Fixed Assets

2.5 Depreciation and amortisation,impairment

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the
Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities,disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the consolidated financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. The Management believes that the
estimates used in preparation of the consolidated financial statements are prudent and reasonable.
Future results could differ from those estimates and the difference between the actual results and the
estimates are recognized in the periods in which the results are known / materialise.

Fixed Assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortization. The cost of fixed assets
comprises its purchase price and other attributable expenditure incurred in making the asset ready for
its intended use and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to
the date the asset is ready for its intended use.

Depreciation has been provided on the written down value method as per the rates prescribed in
Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 except in respect of following assets, in whose case
depreciation is provided on the straight-line method (SLM), basis the life of the assets which has been
assessed as under:

Scaffolding Materials 5 years
Wire Ropes and Slings 2 years
Computer including Software 4 years
Motor Cars under car policy for executives 4 years

Leasehold land and leasehold improvements are amortized over the duration of the lease.

c) (i) The consolidation of the following subsidiary/ joint venture has been done on the basis of
unaudited financial statements certified by the management
- TQ Services Europe GmbH
- AlTawleed for Energy and Power Company.

(ii) The financial statements of Al Tawleed for Energy and Power Company considered in the
consolidated financial statements is based on management accounts drawn for the period from
January 1,2012 to December 31,2012.The Company is under liquidation.

d) The group’s associate is:-

Name of the Company Country of Incorporation
Percentage of ownership interest

As at As at
March 31,2012

Virendra Garments
Manufacturers Private Limited India 24

The financial statements of the above Company is not available and hence has not been considered for
consolidation.

March 31,2013

24



In respect of parent company, fixed assets costing less than 10,000 each are fully depreciated in the

year of capitalisation. In respect of subsidiary company, assets costing less than 5,000 each are fully
depreciated in the year of acquisition.
All fixed assets are assessed for any indication of impairment at the end of each financial year.On such
indication, the impairment loss being the excess of carrying value over the recoverable value of the
assets is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the respective financial years.The impairment
loss recognized in prior years is reversed in cases where the recoverable value exceeds the carrying
value,upon reassessment in the subsequent years.

To state goodwill arising on consolidation at cost,and to recognise,where applicable,any impairment.

Long-term investments are carried individually at cost less provision for diminution, other than
temporary, in the value of such investments. Premium paid on investments acquired to hold till
maturity is amortised over the holding period.
Current Investments are carried individually,at the lower of cost and fair value.

Raw materials are valued at lower of cost, ascertained on "weighted average" method and net
realisable value.
Finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable values. Cost comprises, material and
applicable manufacturing overheads and excise duty.
Stores and spares are valued at cost or below on weighted average basis.
Goods-in-transit are valued at cost or below.

(i) Income from Contracts
Revenue from execution of contracts is recognised on percentage completion method. The stage of
completion is determined on the basis of actual work executed during the period.
No profit is recognized till a minimum of 10% progress is achieved on the contract. Cost incurred and
invoices raised in respect of such contracts are carried in the Balance Sheet as contracts in progress and
advance billing respectively.

(ii) Revenue from sale of goods and services is recognized on dispatch of goods and upon transfer of
property in the goods to customers and at the time of rendering of services respectively.Sales includes
excise duty and other indirect taxes but excludes indirect taxes collected from customers.

Unbilled revenue represents value of work executed,billed subsequent to the Balance Sheet date and is
valued at contract price.

(i) Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are restated at the
prevailing year end rates. The resultant gain / loss upon such restatement along with gain / loss on
account of foreign currency transactions are accounted in the statement of profit and loss.

(ii) In respect of items covered by forward exchange contracts, the premium or discount arising at the

2.6 Goodwill on Consolidation

2.7 Investments

2.8 Inventories

2.9 Revenue recognition

2.10 Unbilled revenues

2.11 Foreign ExchangeTransactions

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

inception of such a forward exchange contract is amortized as expense or income over the life of the
contract. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such a forward exchange contract is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(iii) In respect of financial statements of integral foreign operations of foreign branches, fixed assets are
recorded at cost, based on the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Current assets
and current liabilities are reported using the exchange rates on the date of balance sheet, income and
expenses are translated at the monthly average rates of exchange. The resultant exchange gains /
losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The Group's contribution to provident fund and superannuation fund, considered as defined
contribution plans are charged as an expense in the statement of profit and loss based on the amount
of contribution required to be made.

The defined benefit plans comprises gratuity and post retirement medical benefits.Gratuity is funded
and the liability as at Balance Sheet date is provided based on actuarial valuation carried out by an
independent actuary,in accordance with Accounting Standard 15 on 'Employee Benefits' (AS 15).
Provision for pension and medical benefits payable to retired Managing Directors is made on the basis
of an actuarial valuation as at the Balance Sheet date.

Other long term employee benefits comprise compensated absences which is provided based on an
actuarial valuation carried out in accordance with AS 15 as at the Balance Sheet date.
In respect of Al Tawleed For Energy and Power Company, the provision for end of service benefit is
provided as per regulatory requirements of its country of incorporation.

Current tax is determined based on the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year.
Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences,being the difference between the taxable income and
accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent
periods subject to consideration of prudence. Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed depreciation and
carry forward of losses are not recognised unless there is a virtual certainty that there will be sufficient
future taxable income available to realise such assets. Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
Balance Sheet date.

The earnings considered in ascertaining the Group's Earnings Per Share (EPS) comprises net profit after
tax (and includes the post tax effect of any extra ordinary items). The number of shares used in
computing Basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed to be converted as of the beginning of the year,unless they
have been issued at a later date. The number of shares used for computing the diluted EPS is the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year after considering the dilutive
potential equity shares.

Defined contribution plans

Defined benefit plans

Other long term employee benefits

2.12 Retirement benefits

2.13 Taxes on income

2.14 Earning per share



2.15 Segment reporting

2.16 Provisions and Contingencies

2.17 Operating cycle

The group identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and
the internal organisation and management structure. The operating segments are the segments for
which separate financial information is available and for which operating profit/(loss) amounts are
evaluated regularly by the executive Management in deciding how to allocate resources and in
assessing performance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the
Group. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been
identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined based
on market/fair value factors.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Group as a whole and not allocable
to segments on reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated revenue/
expenses/assets/liabilities”.

A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will be required to settle the
obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement
benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate
required to settle the obligation at the Balance sheet date.These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes.

When it is probable at any stage of the contract, that the total cost will exceed the total contract
revenue,the expected loss is recognised immediately.

Provision for anticipated warranty costs is made on the basis of technical and available cost estimate.

The Group's activities (primarily construction activities) has an operating cycle that exceeds a period of
twelve months.The Group has selected the duration of the individual contracts as its operating cycle,
wherever appropriate,for classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.
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(ii) Rights,preferences and restrictions attached to the equity shares

(iii) Shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity shares

As at
March 31, 2013

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 100 each per share. Each holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the
Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders.
During the year ended March 31, 2013, the amount of per share dividend recognised as distribution to equity
shareholders was 50 (March 31,2012: 100)

The Tata Power Company Limited 967,500 47.78 967,500 47.78
Tata Chemicals Limited 193,500 9.56 193,500 9.56
Tata Sons Limited 135,000 6.67 135,000 6.67
Voltas Limited 135,000 6.67 135,000 6.67
Tata Motors Limited 135,000 6.67 135,000 6.67

As at
March 31, 2012

Equity shares of 100/- each with voting rights shares No. of shares %No. of %

Notes:

Equity shares with voting rights

(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Year Ended
March 31,2013

No. of Amount
shares in lac

At the end of the year 2,025,000 2,025.00 2,025,000 2,025.00

Year Ended
March 31,2012

shares in lac

As at beginning of the year 2,025,000 2,025.00 2,025,000 2,025.00
Changes during the year - - - -

No. of Amount

Note 3 Share Capital

As at
No. of shares in lac

Equity shares of 100/- each with voting rights 2,500,000 2,500.00 2,500,000 2,500.00

Equity shares of 100/- each with voting rights 2,025,000 2,025.00 2,025,000 2,025.00

As at
No. of shares in lac

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up

Total 2,025,000 2,025.00 2,025,000 2,025.00

March 31,2013
Authorised

March 31,2012

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

(iv) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being
received in cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date:

As at March 31, 2012
Equity shares allotted as fully paid Bonus shares in
2008-09 by capitalistion of securities premium account

Aggregate number of shares

As at March 31, 2013

1,687,500 1,687,500



Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 4 Reserves and surplus

As at
March 31,2012

in lac

4,987.50 4,987.50

Opening balance 843.75 843.75
Less: transferred to surplus in the consolidated statement

and loss on redemption of 8% partly convertible
(non convertible portion) (843.75) -

Closing balance - 843.75

Opening balance 12,026.12 10,479.07
Add: transferred from surplus in the consolidated

profit and loss 848.76 1,547.05

Closing balance 12,874.88 12,026.12

Opening balance 135.70 146.23
Add/(Less): effect of foreign exchange rate variations
during the year (115.82) (10.53)

Closing balance 19.88 135.70

80.25 90.48

Opening balance 40,951.58 30,485.61
Add: Profit for the year 6,214.07 14,366.53

Amount tranferred from debenture redemption reserve 843.75 -
Less: Dividend proposed to be distributed to

equity shareholders
[ 50 per share (March 31, 2012: 100/- per share)] (1,012.50) (2,025.00)
Tax on dividend (172.07) (328.51)
Transferred to general reserve (848.76) (1,547.05)

Closing balance * 45,976.07 40,951.58

* includes Group share of loss in joint ventures 811.10 lac (March 31, 2012: 752.05 lac)

As at
March 31,2013

in lac

(a) Securities premium account

(b) Debenture redemption reserve

(c) General reserve

(d) Foreign currency translation reserve

(e) Capital reserve on consolidation

(f) Surplus in consolidated statement of profit and loss

Total 63,938.58 59,035.13

of profit
debentures

statement of
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 5 Long-term borrowings

Note 6 Other long-term liabilities

As at
March 31,2012

in lac

Nil (March 31, 2012: 112,500) 8% partly convertible debentures - 1,125.00
(non convertible portion)
Less : Current maturities of long-term borrowings disclosed

under Note 10 - Other current liabilities - 1,125.00
- -

As at
March 31,2013

in lac

Debentures (secured)

Term loan

Sales tax deferment loan

Total 48.85 97.86

Total 1,096.78 1,135.40

From banks
- secured
- unsecured

Less : Current maturities of long-term borrowings disclosed
under Note 10 - Other current liabilities 11.88 9.67

48.85 61.59

24.01 39.63
Less : Current maturities of long-term borrowings disclosed

under Note 10 - Other current liabilities 24.01 3.36
- 36.27

48.85 97.86
Share of joint ventures - -

Notes :

a) Trade payables * 1,085.09 1,135.40
b) Security deposit received 11.69 -

1,096.78 1,135.40
Share of joint ventures - -

* comprises retention money payable beyond the normal operating cycle.

(i) 8% partly convertible debentures (non convertible portion) of 3,000 each issued on August 29,2006 has
been redeemed at par in 3 equal annual installments commencing at the end of 4th year from the date of
allotment and secured by way of :
a) First pari-passu equitable mortgage of all immovable properties of the Company located in

Hyderabad, Andhra Pradesh ranking on par with other lenders of the Company
b) First charge by way of hypothecation of all movable properties / fixed assets,and
c) Floating charge on current assets and loans and advances,subject to first charge being in favour of the

Company's bankers and / or working capital lenders.
(ii) Term loans from banks are repayable in equal periodic installments upto a 10 year period from the date of

respective loan and carry an interest of 14.1% p.a.

in lac



Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 7 Long-term provisions

Note 8 Short-term borrowings

Note 9 Trade payables

As at
March 31,2012

in lac

(i) Compensated absences 1,305.12 647.16
(ii) Gratuity 101.33 -
(iii) Post retirement medical benefits 25.95 17.71
(iv) Pension 241.83 180.97

1,674.23 845.84
Share of joint ventures 0.60 0.24

As at
March 31,2013

in lac

Provision for employee benefits

Total 1,674.83 846.08

As at
March 31,2012

in lac

- Secured
Overdraft facilities (refer Note (i) below) 800.29 117.34
Buyer's credit  (refer Note (ii) below) 3,029.06 -
Working capital (refer Note (iii) below) 2,527.48 2,032.48

- Unsecured
Overdraft facilities 300.37 -

6,657.20 2,149.82
Share of joint ventures 339.65 328.50

Notes :

As at
March 31,2012

in lac

Other than Acceptances * 224,606.05 206,099.77

224,606.05 206,099.77

Share of joint ventures 1,524.87 1,429.63

* includes provision for contract execution expenses 56,990.71 lac (March 31, 2012: 88,054.34 lac)

As at
March 31,2013

in lac

Loans repayable on demand from banks

Total 6,996.85 2,478.32

As at
March 31,2013

in lac

Total 226,130.92 207,529.40

(i) Overdraft facilities are secured by:
(a) a first charge on the book debts,inventories and other current assets ranking pari-passu.
(b) an exclusive charge on the entire receivables, fixed assets and current assets relating to the project

being undertaken at Dubai.
(ii) Buyer's credit are secured by a first charge on all the current assets including inventories, receivables and

other moveable assets of the Company both present and future.
(iii) Working capital loan is secured by a first charge on inventories,receivables and other current assets.
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 10 Other current liabilities

Note 11 Short-term provisions

As at
March 31,2012

in lac

(a) Current maturities of long-term borrowings
(refer Note 5 - Long-term borrowings) 35.89 1,138.03

(b) Interest accrued and due on borrowings 1.79 0.80
(c) Income received in advance (advance billing) 164.59 207.32
(d) Other payables :

(i) Statutory remittances 3,548.72 2,292.44
(ii) Payables on purchase of fixed assets 933.87 380.12
(iii) Interest accrued on trade payables and mobilisation

advance received 388.25 461.15
(iv) Security deposits received 388.65 306.34
(v) Mobilisation advances from customers 93,008.00 69,330.49
(vi) Others 43.91 38.33

98,513.67 74,155.02
Share of joint ventures 47.43 60.82

As at
March 31,2013

in lac

Total 98,561.10 74,215.84

As at
March 31,2012

in lac

(a) Provision for employee benefits:
(i) Compensated absences 297.04 109.35
(ii) Gratuity 0.84 0.65
(iii) Post retirement medical benefits 3.00 10.00
(iv) Pension 31.80 30.16

332.68 150.16
(b) Provisions - Others:

(i) Taxation (net) 240.09 981.86
(ii) Foreseeable losses on contracts (refer Note 31.15) 577.76 606.85
(iii) Proposed dividend 1,012.50 2,025.00
(iv) Tax on proposed dividend 172.07 328.51

2,002.42 3,942.22
2,335.10 4,092.38

Share of joint ventures 3.59 3.88

As at
March 31,2013

in lac

Total 2,338.69 4,096.26
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 14 Non-current investments

As at
March 31,2012

in lac

Virendra Garments Manufacturing Private Limited
1,200 (March 31, 2012: 1,200) shares of 100 each fully paid 1.20 1.20
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments (1.20) (1.20)

- -

Tata Dilworth Secord Meagher & Associates
(Refer note below) 1.80 1.80
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments (1.80) (1.80)

- -
- -

Investments in Exim Bank
3 Nos.(March 31, 2012: 3 Nos.) 6.35% Exim Bond - 2013
of 100 lac each fully paid 302.35 302.35
Less: Amortisation of premium (2.30) (2.06)

300.05 300.29
Share of joint ventures - -

As at
March 31,2013

in lac

Investments (At cost unless stated otherwise)

A. Trade (unquoted)
a) Investment in equity instruments

b) Investment in partnership firms

B. Other investments
(i) Government securities

Total 300.05 300.29

(unquoted)

Note: Other details relating to investment in partnership firm

As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012

Name of the firm Name of
Capital each partner

in the profits
of the firm firm the firm

Tata Dilworth Secord,
Meagher & Associates Limited 1.80 60% Limited 1.80 60%

(ii) Dilworth
Secord,

Meagher &
Associates 1.20 40% Associates 1.20 40%

Share of Share of Name of Share of Share of each
partner partner Capital partner in the

in the firm in the profits of

(i) Tata Projects (i) Tata Projects

(ii) Dilworth
Secord,

Meagher &
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 15 Deferred tax assets (net)

Note 16 Long-term loans and advances

Note 17 Other non-current assets

As at
March 31,2012

in lac

As at
March 31,2013

in lac

A. Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability - -
B. Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets

Depreciation 171.81 3.52
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 2,457.55 1,357.55
Provision for foreseeable losses 196.38 196.89
Provision of compensated absences and gratuity 657.68 314.58
Disallowance under section 43B 61.18 61.10
Others 25.07 14.21

Share of joint ventures - -

(unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Capital Advances 8.01 124.39
(b) Security deposits

Unsecured, considered good 1,108.51 820.18
Doubtful 199.00 -

1,307.51 820.18
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits (199.00) -

1,108.51 820.18
(c) Deposits with government authorities 767.23 355.20
(d) Loans and advances to employees 57.49 66.76
(e) Prepaid expenses 34.46 17.77
(f ) Advance income tax (net) 500.47 -
(g) Advance payment of fringe benefit tax (net) 26.28 26.28
(h) Other project related advances 104.03 -

2,606.48 1,410.58
Share of joint ventures 22.59 4.15

3,569.67 1,947.85

Deferred tax assets (net) 3,569.67 1,947.85

Total 2,629.07 1,414.73

As at
March 31,2012

in lac

As at
March 31,2012

in lac

* comprises retention money receivable beyond the normal operating cycle.

As at
March 31,2013

in lac

As at
March 31,2013

in lac

(a) Long-term trade receivables * 1,734.31 1,434.79
(b) Insurance and other claims receivable 300.90 -

2,035.21 1,434.79
Share of joint ventures - -

Total 2,035.21 1,434.79



Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 18 Current investments (at lower of cost and fair value)

As at
March 31,2012

in lac

TATA Floater Fund - Daily Dividend - 3,951.42
Nil (March 31, 2012: 3,93,74,068.299) Units of 10 each

UTI Treasury Advantage Fund - Institutional Plan - Daily Dividend
Option- Reinvestment 321.72 1,238.96
32,165.526 (March 31, 2012: 1,23,869.480) Units of 1,000 each

HDFC Cash Management Fund - Treasury Advantage Plan -
Wholesale -  Daily Dividend, Option : Reinvest - 502.69
Nil (March 31, 2012: 50,11,118.389) Units of 10 each

IDFC Money Manager Fund - TP - Super Inst Plan C - Daily Dividend - 537.63
Nil (March 31, 2012: 53,75,534.500) Units of 10 each

Kotak Floater Long Term - Daily Dividend 315.52 950.24
31,30,268.264 (March 31, 2012: 94,27,142.889) Units of 10 each

DSP Blackrock Money Manager Fund- Institutional Plan-Daily Dividend                           - 431.29
Nil (March 31, 2012: 43,094.562) Units of 1,000 each

HSBC Floating Rate-Long Term Plan - Weekly Dividend 160.23 -
14,26,706.190 (March 31, 2012: Nil) Units of 10 each

JM Money Manager Fund - Super Plan - Daily Dividend - Reinvest 224.93 1,183.50
22,47,307.451 (March 31, 2012: 1,18,21,099.319) units of 10 each

Templeton India Ultra Short Bond Fund Institutional Plan -
Daily Dividend Reinvestment - 1,134.28
Nil (March 31, 2012: 1,13,30,265.817) Units of 10 each

Birla Sun Life Savings Fund - Daily Dividend -
Regular Plan - Reinvestment 337.06 1,249.25
336,743.244 (March 31, 2012: 12,48,401.681) Units of 100 each

SBI - SHF - Ultra Short Term Fund - Institutional Plan - Daily Dividend - 989.15
Nil (March 31, 2012: 98,856.181) Units of 1,000 each

ICICI Prudential Flexible Income - Regular Plan - Daily Dividend 357.83 1,274.68
3,38,417.886 (March 31, 2012: 12,05,538.270) Units of 100 each

Tata Floater Fund - Plan A- Daily Dividend - Reinvestment 1,009.27 -
1,00,568.831 (March 31, 2012: Nil) Units of 1,000 each

As at
March 31,2013

in lac

Investments in mutual funds
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 18 Current investments (at lower of cost and fair value) (Contd..)

As at
March 31,2012

in lac

HDFC Liquid Fund - Dividend - Daily Reinvestment 310.92 -
30,48,798.054 (March 31, 2012: Nil) Units of 10 each

Templeton India Ultra Short Bond Fund Super Institutional
Daily Dividend Plan 372.77 -
37,21,020.496 (March 31, 2012: Nil) Units of 10 each

DSP BlackRock Money Manager Fund-Regular-Daily Dividend Reinvest 127.88 -
12,578.639 (March 31, 2012: Nil) Units of 1,000 each

SBI Ultra Short Term Debt Fund – Regular Plan - Daily Dividend 214.33 -
21,405.554 (March 31, 2012: Nil) Units of 1,000 each

IDFC Money Manager Fund - Treasury Plan -
Daily Dividend - (Regular Plan) 17.76                                    -
1,76,337.294 (March 31, 2012: Nil) Units of 10 each

3,770.22 13,443.09
Share of joint venture 15.56 98.84

As at
March 31,2013

in lac

Total 3,785.78 13,541.93

Note 19 Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

As at
March 31,2012

in lac

(a) Raw materials 2,080.12 3,155.09
(b) Work-in-process 507.27 585.95
(c) Finished goods # 245.02 78.92
(d) Stores and spares 32.29 11.53
(e) Contracts-in-progress * 22,074.84 7,735.79

24,939.54 11,567.28
Share of joint ventures - 0.99

# includes Goods-in-transit 176.00 -
* includes Goods-in-transit 2,979.20 -

As at
March 31,2013

in lac

Total 24,939.54 11,568.27



Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 21 Cash and cash equivalents

As at
March 31,2012

in lac

(a) Cash on hand 43.51 28.18
(b) Balances with banks:

- In current accounts 10,670.30 13,940.92
- In EEFC accounts 61.20 668.36
- In demand deposit accounts (refer Note below) 444.32 35,312.11

11,219.33 49,949.57
Share of joint ventures 14.10 14.99

Note:
Deposit accounts include Nil (March 31, 2012 : Nil) demand deposits which have an original maturity of
more than 12 months from the balance sheet date.

As at
March 31,2013

in lac

Total 11,233.43 49,964.56

Note 20 Trade receivables

As at
March 31,2012

in lac

Unsecured, considered good 19,373.71 23,567.00
Doubtful 6,875.19 3,884.17

26,248.90 27,451.17
Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables (6,875.19) (3,884.17)

19,373.71 23,567.00

Unsecured, considered good # 211,575.63 171,177.78
230,949.34 194,744.78

Share of joint ventures 685.42 630.01

# includes retention money receivable 99,340.63 lac (March 31, 2012 : 83,666.89 lac)

As at
March 31,2013

in lac

Other Trade receivables

Total 231,634.76 195,374.79

Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding
six months from the date they were due for payment
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 22 Short-term loans and advances
(Unsecured,considered good unless otherwise stated)

As at
March 31,2012

in lac

(a) Security deposits 574.63 440.21
(b) Loans and advances to employees 260.63 161.81
(c) Prepaid expenses 670.83 486.12
(d) Balances with government authorities

CENVAT credit receivable 29.21 146.71
VAT credit receivable 1,329.70 740.69
Sales tax deducted at source 6,590.15 4,984.13
Customs duty refund receivable 1,169.41 -

9,118.47 5,871.53
(e) Inter-corporate deposits 23,500.00 12,000.00
(f ) Mobilisation advances 46,787.76 25,535.52
(g) Other project related advances

Unsecured, considered good 13,900.92 4,299.83
Doubtful 400.00 400.00

14,300.92 4,699.83
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (400.00) (400.00)

13,900.92 4,299.83
94,813.24 48,795.02

Share of joint ventures 1,058.59 1,018.14

As at
March 31,2013

in lac

Total 95,871.83 49,813.16

Note 23 Other current assets
(Unsecured,considered good unless otherwise stated)

As at
March 31,2012

in lac

(a) Unbilled revenue 2,300.99 7,923.88
(b) Accruals :

(i) Interest accrued on deposits 16.59 201.32
(ii) Interest accrued on investments 14.87 14.87
(iii) Interest accrued on inter corporate deposits 56.19 221.01
(iv) Interest accrued on mobilisation advance given 80.48 85.30

168.13 522.50
(c) Others

(i) Insurance and other claims receivables
Unsecured, considered good 32.34 19.66
Doubtful 73.25 73.25

105.59 92.91
Less: Provision for doubtful claims (73.25) (73.25)

32.34 19.66
(ii) Contractually reimbursable expenses 1,567.57 1,019.43

1,599.91 1,039.09
4,069.03 9,485.47

Share of joint ventures 30.23 -

As at
March 31,2013

in lac

Total 4,099.26 9,485.47



Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 24 Revenue from operations

For the year ended
March 31,2012

in lac

(a) Income from contracts (refer Note (i) below) 352,779.47 305,738.72

(b) Income from services (refer Note (ii) below) 16,172.53 8,236.93

(c) Income from sale of goods (refer Note (iii) below) 1,541.17 693.75

(d) Other operating revenues (refer Note (iv) below) 614.65 259.19

371,107.82 314,928.59

Share of joint ventures 157.46 49.06

Less: Indirect taxes and duties 11,317.66 6,237.48

Notes:

(i) Income from contracts comprises :

- Supply of contract equipment and materials 225,844.03 203,598.51

- Civil and erection works 126,935.44 102,140.21

(ii) Income from services comprises :

- Quality inspection services 15,800.37 7,971.91

- Manpower services 372.16 265.02

(iii) Income from sale of goods comprises :

- Sale of BWRO units 235.81 214.70

- Sale of pressure vessels and air receivers 1,305.36 479.05

(iv) Other operating revenues comprises :

- Sale of scrap 614.65 259.19

For the year ended
March 31,2013

in lac

Revenue from operations (Gross) 371,265.28 314,977.65

Total 359,947.62                  308,740.17

Total 352,779.47 305,738.72

Total 16,172.53 8,236.93

Total 1,541.17 693.75

Total 614.65 259.19
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 25 Other income

For the year ended
March 31,2012

in lac

(a) Interest income (refer Note (i) below) 3,780.22 2,190.59
(b) Dividend income :

from current investments
- mutual funds 1,096.66 1,465.56

(c) Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translations 213.73 621.33
(d) Other non operating income (refer Note (ii) below) 702.67 421.25

5,793.28 4,698.73
Share of joint ventures 9.74 5.33

Notes:
(i) Interest Income comprises :

- Interest from banks on deposits 697.08 698.01
- Interest on inter corporate deposits 2,144.35 1,103.66
- Interest income from long-term investments 19.05 19.05
- Interest income on mobilisation advance given 816.11 315.73
- Other interest 103.63 54.14

(ii) Other non operating income comprises :
- Hire charges 364.21 182.88
- Liabilities no longer required written back 223.14 -
- Miscellaneous income 115.32 238.37

For the year ended
March 31,2013

in lac

Total 5,803.02 4,704.06

Total 3,780.22 2,190.59

Total 702.67 421.25

Note 26 Contract execution expenses

For the year ended
March 31,2012

in lac

(a) Cost of supplies/erection and civil works * 288,056.36 238,712.06

(b) Technical and engineering fees 5,089.97 1,862.13

(c) Insurance premium 1,857.65 1,368.66

(d) Bank guarantee and letter of credit charges 1,515.56 1,712.06
296,519.54 243,654.91

Share of joint ventures 97.16 34.74

* includes increase / (decrease) in excise duty of 4.84 lac (previous year: ( 2.60 lac)) on finished goods

For the year ended
March 31,2013

in lac

Total 296,616.70 243,689.65
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Note 27 Changes in inventories of finished goods,work-in-process and contracts-in-progress

Note 28  Employee benefits expense

For the year ended
March 31,2012

in lac

Finished goods 245.02 78.92

Work-in-process 507.27 585.95

Contracts-in-progress 22,074.84                      7,736.79

Finished goods 78.92 51.36

Work-in-process 585.95 548.32

Contracts-in-progress 7,736.79 6,008.38

Share of joint ventures -                                     -

(a) Salaries and wages 21,852.78 18,790.66

(b) Contribution to provident and other funds 2,242.70 1,684.89

(c) Staff welfare expenses 1,059.61 888.08

25,155.09 21,363.63

Share of joint ventures 72.82 76.87

For the year ended
March 31,2013

in lac

Inventories at the end of the year

22,827.13                       8,401.66

Inventories at the beginning of the year

8,401.66 6,608.06

(14,425.47) (1,793.60)

Net (increase)/decrease (14,425.47) (1,793.60)

Total 25,227.91 21,440.50

For the year ended
March 31,2012

in lac

For the year ended
March 31,2013

in lac
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Note 29 Other expenses

For the year ended
March 31,2012

in lac

Consumption of stores and spare parts 291.84 139.87
Rent 2,099.69 1,554.29

Repairs and maintenance

- Building 1.87 134.45

- Machinery 297.29 208.35

- Others 538.90 375.49

Processing charges 765.55 326.62

Power and fuel 788.53 583.06

Rates and taxes 239.72 122.58

Insurance 71.50 74.46

Motor vehicle expenses 2,031.10 1,466.48

Traveling and conveyance 3,232.00 2,026.75

Legal and professional 1,587.63 1,275.12

Payment to auditors (refer Note below) 59.23 42.28

Communication expenses 526.02 454.69

Printing and stationery 277.19 225.69

Staff recruitment and training expenses 165.63 92.76

Business development expenditure 178.63 312.44

Bank charges 53.61 92.81

Freight and handling charges 393.43 158.27

Amortisation of premium and provision for

diminution in the value of investments 0.24 (75.36)

Bad debts 36.06 13.97

Provision for doubtful trade receivables 3,442.65 437.87

3,478.71 451.84

Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables reversed (451.63) (133.73)

3,027.08 318.11

Advances written off 254.41 -

Provision for doubtful loans and advances 199.00 -

453.41 -

Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances - (100.42)

For the year ended
March 31,2013

in lac

453.41 (100.42)

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements



Note 30 Finance costs

For the year ended
March 31,2012

in lac

(a) Interest expense on :

(I) Borrowings 467.54 375.65

(ii) Mobilisation advance received 2,693.86 2,033.00

(iii) Others 166.52 6.57

(b) Other borrowing costs 47.08 11.09

3,375.00 2,426.31

Share of joint ventures - -

For the year ended
March 31,2013

in lac

Total 3,375.00 2,426.31

Note 29 Other expenses (Contd...)

For the year ended
March 31,2012

in lac

Agency commission 49.84 45.18

Brand equity contribution 576.47 753.92

Loss on sale of fixed assets (net) 79.04 55.78

Miscellaneous expenses 1,066.76 936.17

18,852.20 11,599.84

Share of joint ventures 51.57 45.60

Note:

Payment to auditors comprises (net of service tax)

(a) To Statutory auditors

Audit fees 38.66 27.92

Tax audit fees 3.12 3.10

Limited review fees 7.68 7.54

Other services 6.18 3.52

Reimbursement of expenses 0.96 0.20

(b) To Cost auditor for cost audit 2.63 -

For the year ended
March 31,2013

in lac

Total 18,903.77 11,645.44

Total 59.23 42.28

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 31 Additional notes to the consolidated financial statements

31.1 Contingent liabilities and commitments
(to the extent not provided for)

31.2 Raw materials consumed

31.3 Details on derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposures

For the year ended
March 31,2012

in lac

(a) Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debt

Sales tax matters under dispute 4,905.48 4,008.09

Income tax matters under dispute 227.26 333.79

Third party claims from disputes relating to contracts 1,594.99 830.00

(b) Guarantees
Performance and other bank guarantees issued by
banks on behalf of the Company 354,226.70 331,400.25
Corporate guarantees 19,929.12 16,600.93

(c) Others - liquidated damages Amounts Amounts
indeterminate indeterminate

(d) Bills discounted 460.48 -

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed
on capital account and not provided for [net of advance

8.01 lac (March 31, 2012 : 124.39 lac)] 69.73 497.57

For the year ended
March 31,2013

in lac

(i) Contingent liabilities:

(ii) Commitments

Total 21,037.96 11,255.60

Currency Amount (in Million) Buy/Sell Cross currency

Steel / Plates 17,639.55 9,114.51

Zinc 1,676.32 967.45

Others (including lead, pipes and paints) 1,722.09 1,173.64

The consumption figures shown above are after adjustment of excess and shortages found on
physical verification.

a) Outstanding forward exchange contracts entered into by the Company as on March 31, 2013

EUR 1.28 Buy Rupees

(-) (-) (-)

USD 0.52 Buy Rupees

(-) (-) (-)

Amounts in brackets represent previous year numbers



Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

31.3 Details on derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposures (Contd...)

b) The year end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or
otherwise are given below:

(in Million)

1 Short term borrowings USD 1.05 569.77 - -
EUR 1.73 1,205.37 - -
AED 5.41 800.29 0.85 117.34

2 Receivables AED 24.67 3,645.50 31.56 4,370.47
KES 23.06 146.43 - -

WON 85.14 41.72 10.79 4.86
QAR 0.37 54.72 0.14 20.19
EUR 0.32 220.68 0.37 251.77
ZAR 40.77 2,397.26 4.30 284.98
SAR 11.94 1,746.37 11.95 1,691.00
SGD - - 0.02 7.28

3 Payables QAR 0.002 0.26 0.09 27.23
AED 12.52 1,850.38 23.69 3,281.60
SGD 0.07 29.66 0.001 0.47
EUR 0.14 95.74 0.12 80.86
ZAR 29.15 1,713.92 2.80 185.71
SAR 13.06 1,910.12 13.06 1,848.24

WON 28.56 14.00 - -
KES 300.22 210.02 - -

4 Interest accrued on buyer's credit USD 0.002 1.33 - -
EUR 0.004 2.56 - -

5 Cash and cash equivalents QAR 0.02 3.16 0.37 51.27
SGD 0.01 4.95 0.02 7.27
AED 2.38 351.96 3.78 522.91
USD 0.42 228.87 1.00 528.71
WON 294.92 143.98 188.69 84.91
KES 214.15 1,359.86 – –
EUR                       0.66 456.03 0.21 145.39
ZAR 25.74 1,513.27 6.00 397.94
SAR 0.09 13.54 0.09 13.10

c) The net difference in foreign exchange credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss is 213.73 lac
(March 31,2012 : 621.33 Lac).

As at March 31,2013

Foreign
Currency currency in lac

(in M

As at March 31,2012

Foreign
currency in lac

illion)
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31.4

31.5

31.6

31.7

31.8

Note 22 - Short-term loans and advances includes 610.00 lac (March 31, 2012: 610.00 lac) on account
of taxes deducted at source on inter state supplies under applicable Value Added Tax Acts.The Parent
Company has contested the deduction in the applicable judicial forum and is confident of a favorable
outcome in the matter.

The Parent Company’s tower manufacturing facility located at Nagpur is entitled to certain incentives
under “Package Scheme of Incentives - 2007” which includes, Industrial Promotion Subsidy (IPS)
equivalent of 30% of eligible investments,limited to 384.93 lac,which will be sanctioned and disbursed
as per modalities to be determined by Government of Maharashtra. Benefit will be accounted on such
final determination.

The Draft Rehabilitation Scheme proposed by the subsidiary company (Artson Engineering Limited)
was sanctioned by the Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction (BIFR) on December 18, 2007
and accordingly the scheme was given effect to in the financial statements prior to the Parent Company
acquiring the stake. The subsidiary company is in the process of making an application to the BIFR
seeking an extension of the sanctioned scheme of rehabilitation. Based on the current order book
position and continuing operational and financial support of the Parent Company, the Management is
confident about the subsidiary company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The subsidiary company has filed an appeal with Appellate Authority for Industrial and Financial
Reconstruction (AAIFR) with reference to the sanctioned scheme in respect of Income Tax matters,
exemption from applicability of Clause 49 of the listing agreement, from property / house rent tax by
Nasik Municipal Corporation, etc. The subsidiary company has received an order from AAIFR dated
January 1, 2009 specifying waivers of the above mentioned taxes and penalties and accordingly the
effect has been given in the consolidated financial statements.

March 31,2012
in lac

Contract revenue recognised during the year 352,779.47 305,738.72

Aggregate of contract costs incurred and recognised profits
(less recognized losses) upto the reporting date 1,542,110.05 1,291,254.31

Advances received for contracts-in-progress 92,899.46 69,251.18

Retention money for contracts-in-progress 101,074.94 85,101.68

Gross amount due from customers for contract work 22,451.57 17,937.42

In line with accepted practice in construction business, certain revisions to costs and billing of
previous years which have crystallized during the year have been dealt with in the current year.
The Statement of Profit and Loss for the year includes debits aggregating 2,139.50 lac (March 31,2012 :

2,717.57 lac - credits) on account of changes in estimates.

Disclosures required to be made under Accounting Standard (AS-7) Construction Contracts

For the year ended
March 31,2013

in lac

For the year ended

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 31 Additional Information to the financial statements (Contd.)



31.9 Employee benefits

I Components of employer's
expense

II Net asset / (liability recognised
in the Balance Sheet

III Change in defined benefit
obligation (DBO) during the year

a) Defined benefit plans

The following table sets out the status of the defined benefit schemes and the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

March 31,2013

Total expense recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss 602.78 100.30 1.70 389.43 124.64 27.71

Net asset/(liability) recognised
in the Balance Sheet (102.17) (273.63) (28.95) 2.88 (211.13) (27.71)

Present value of DBO
at the end of the year 2,062.57 273.63 28.95 1,478.78 211.13 27.71

Year ended March 31,2012

Current service cost 225.58 - - 184.24 - -

Interest cost 144.24 16.60 2.36 98.81 8.82 -

Expected return on plan assets (126.33) - - (101.16) - -

Past service cost - - - - 93.16 27.71

Actuarial losses / gains 359.29 83.70 (0.66) 207.54 22.66 -

Present value of defined
benefit obligation 2,062.56 273.63 28.95 1,478.78 211.13 27.71

Fair value on plan assets (1,960.39) - - (1,481.66) - -

Status [Deficit] (102.17) (273.63) (28.95) 2.88 (211.13) (27.71)

Unrecognised past service cost - - - - - -

Present value of DBO
at beginning of the year 1,481.93 211.13 27.71 1,198.45 106.86 -

Current service cost 225.58 - - 184.24 93.16 27.71

Interest cost 144.24 16.60 2.36 98.81 8.82 -

Actuarial (gains)/losses 394.16 83.70 (0.66) 216.59 22.66 -

Benefits paid (183.35) (37.80) (0.46) (219.31) (20.37) -

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
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31.9 Employee benefits (Contd...)

IV Change in fair values of
assets during the year

V The major categories
of plan assets

VI Actuarial assumptions

March 31,2013 Year ended March 31,2012

Plan assets at beginning of the year 1,481.66 - - 1,217.66 - -

Expected return on plan assets 126.57 - - 101.79 - -

Actual company contributions 500.89 37.80 0.46 372.47 20.37 -

Actuarial gain / (loss) 34.62 - - 9.05 - -

Benefits paid (183.35) (37.80) (0.46) (219.31) (20.37) -

Plan assets at the end of the year 1,960.38 - - 1,481.66 - -

Actual return on plan assets 157.68 - - 107.33 - -

Funded with Tata AIG Life

Insurance Company Limited and

Life Insurance Corporation of India 1,960.38 - - 1,481.66 - -

Discount rate 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 8.50% 8.50% 8.50%

Expected rate of return

on plan assets 8.00% - - 8.50% - -

Salary escalation 5.00% - - 5.00% - -

Attrition 10% - - 10% - -

Mortality Indian LIC
Assured Lives (1994-96)

Mortality Ultimate
(2006-08)
ULT Table

The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the current portfolio of assets, investment strategy
and market scenario. In order to protect the capital and optimise returns within acceptable risk parameters,
the plan assets are well diversified.

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

in lac
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

1

2

The Group is in the business of executing Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC) contracts
in various infrastructure fields, comprising power generation, transmission, distribution and related
ancillary services including manufacturing activity, telecommunications, civil construction and other
allied engineering and quality services. The projects are executed both in India and abroad.
Considering the core activities of the Group as above, the primary segment is business segment and
secondary segment is geographical segment.

Accordingly the primary segments of the Company are:
1 EPC
2 Services
3 Others

and secondary segments of the Company are:
1 Domestic
2 Overseas

Reporting for business segment is on the following basis:

Revenue relating to individual segment is recorded in accordance with accounting policies followed by
the Group. All expenditure, which is directly attributable to a project, is charged to the project and
included in the respective segment to which the project related.The costs which cannot be reasonably
attributable to any project and are in the nature of general administrative overheads are shown as
unallocable expenses.

Fixed assets employed in the specific project are allocated to the segment to which the project relates.
The depreciation on the corresponding assets is charged to respective segments.



3 Segment Reults

Business segments
TotalParticulars

EPC Services Others
Eliminations

7 Profit before taxes (5+6) 11,129.67
(21,768.12)

9 Profit for the year (7-8) 7,203.68
(14,652.61)

Total assets 403,860.10
(351,753.06)

Total liabilities 336,848.02
(290,399.16)

Revenue 343,389.27 17,179.16 1,693.69 2,314.50 359,947.62
(298,180.53) (11,681.51) (246.87) (1,368.74) (308,740.17)

Inter segment revenue - 470.50 - 470.50 -
- (283.67) - (283.67) -

1 Segment revenue 343,389.27 17,649.66 1,693.69 2,785.00 359,947.62
(298,180.53) (11,965.18) (246.87) (1,652.41) (308,740.17)

2 Segment result 12,090.26 5,898.24 1,465.05 - 19,453.55
(22,309.72) (4,148.33) (33.51) - (26,491.56)

3 Unallocable expenses (net) 10,751.90
(7,001.19)

4 Finance costs 3,375.00
(2,426.31)

5 Operating income (2-3-4) 5,326.65
(17,064.06)

6 Other income (net) 5,803.02
(4,704.06)

8 Tax expense 3,925.99
(7,115.51)

Segment assets 354,690.71 7,837.44 152.47 - 362,680.62
(276,483.71) (4,275.71) (93.24) - (280,852.66)

Unallocable assets 41,179.48
(70,900.40)

Segment liabilities 325,908.65 1,726.60 41.49 - 327,676.74
(279,057.84) (694.56) (13.34) - (279,765.74)

Unallocable liabilities 9,171.28
(10,633.42)

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

in lac
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3 Segment Reults (Contd...)

Business segments TotalParticulars
EPC Services Others

Eliminations

Capital expenditure (allocable) 8,314.83 1.52 - 8,316.35
(4,424.53) (4.10) - (4,428.63)

Capital expenditure (unallocable) 2,470.81
(635.32)

Depreciation and amortisation
(allocable) 3,055.18 25.20 - 3,080.38

(2,261.84) (7.69) (0.05) (2,269.58)
Depreciation and amortisation
(unallocable) 804.72

(742.63)

Other information

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Domestic (allocable) 346,499.60 350,176.63 8,190.29

(287,357.02) (272,348.51) (4,425.09)

Domestic (unallocable) - 41,179.48 2,470.81

- (70,900.40) (635.32)

Overseas 13,448.02 12,503.99 126.06

(21,383.15) (8,504.15) (3.54)

Amounts in brackets represent previous year numbers

Revenue - for the Segment Capital expenditure
Geographical segment year ended assets as at incurred during the year

March 31,2013 March 31,2013 ended March 31,2013

Total 359,947.62 403,860.10 10,787.16

(308,740.17) (351,753.06) (5,063.95)

( In lac)

( In lac)



Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Description of relationship Names of related parties

Details of related parties:

(i) Entity holding more than 20% The Tata Power Company Limited

(ii) Jointly controlled entities (JCE) Al Tawleed for Energy & Power Company
TEIL Projects Limited

(iii) Associates Virendra Garments Manufacturing Private Limited

(iv) Key Management Personnel (KMP) Mr.Vinayak K Deshpande, Managing Director (w.e.f. July 1, 2011)
Mr. A.K.Misra, Executive Director & Chief Operating Officer
(upto September 30, 2011)
Mr. A.K.Mathur, Executive Director (upto September 30, 2011)

Details of related party transactions during the year ended March 31,2013 and balances outstanding as at March 31,2013

Particulars Entity holding more than 20% JCE KMP Total

Revenue from operations 1,994.64 - - 1,994.64
(1,652.79) (-) (-) (1,652.79)

Interest expenses on borrowings 30.82 - - 30.82
(106.03) (-) (-) (106.03)

Proposed dividend 483.75 - - 483.75
(967.50) (-) (-) (967.50)

Redemption of Debentures 937.50 - - 937.50
(937.50) (-) (-) (937.50)

Contractually reimbursable expenses - 20.32 - 20.32
(-) (2.90) (-) (2.90)

Remuneration - - 293.93 293.93
(-) (-) (341.71) (341.71)

Guarantees given 4,156.80 - - 4,156.80
(-) (-) (-) (-)

Balances outstanding at the end of the year

Trade receivables 2,692.66 58.58 - 2,751.24
(2,615.97) (58.58) (-) (2,674.55)

Trade payables 423.93 24.07 - 448.00
(608.27) (24.07) (-) (632.34)

Contractually reimbursable expenses - 20.32 - 20.32
(-) (2.90) (-) (2.90)

Unbilled revenue 2.96 - - 2.96
(-) (-) (-) (-)

Interest accrued on trade payables and
mobilisation advance received - - - -

(39.95) (-) (-) (39.95)
Proposed Dividend 483.75 - - 483.75

(967.50) (-) (-) (967.50)
Commission payable - - 150.00 150.00

(-) (-) (180.00) (180.00)
Guarantees 2,004.56 - - 2,004.56

(2,439.93) (-) (-) (2,439.93)

Amount in brackets represents previous year numbers.

in lac
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

31.12 Details of leasing arrangements
Operating lease: As lessee

(i) The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases for premises
(residences, office, etc.). The leasing arrangements, which are not non-cancellable range generally
between 11 months to 9 years or longer and are usually renewable by mutual consent on mutually
agreeable terms.The aggregate lease rents payable are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year as Rent under Note 29 - Other expenses..

(ii) With regard to certain other non-cancellable operating leases for premises, the future minimum lease
rental are as follows:

As at March 31, 2012

Not later than one year 1,178.69 432.07
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,537.85 634.67
Later than five years 419.24 -

For the year ended
March 31, 2012

a) Profit for the year ( in lac) 6,214.07 14,366.53
b) Weighted Average number of

Equity Shares of 100 each outstanding
during the year (No’s) 2,025,000 2,025,000

c) Basic and diluted ( )  (a/b) 306.87 709.46

As at March 31, 2013

3,135.78 1,066.74

For the year ended
March 31, 2013

Earning per share

31.13 Earnings per Share (EPS)

in lac

31.14 Goodwill on consolidation

For the year ended
March 31, 2012

Opening Balance 343.73 343.62

Add: Exchange difference during the year on
translation of Goodwill of foreign subsidiaries 0.04 0.11

For the year ended
March 31, 2013

Total 343.77 343.73

in lac



Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

31.15 Details of provisions

The Company has made provisions for various contractual obligations and disputed liabilities based
on its assessment of the amount it estimates to incur to meet such obligations, details of which are
given below:

Particulars As at
Reversal

As at March
April 1, 2012 Additions Utilisation (withdrawn as

31, 2013no longer
required)

Provision for warranty - - - - -

(256.00) (-) (-) (256.00) (-)

Provision for foreseeable
losses on contracts 606.85 496.09 525.18 - 577.76

(-) (606.85) (-) (-) (606.85)

(256.00) (606.85) (-) (256.00) (606.85)

Amounts in brackets represents previous year numbers.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the
current year's classification / disclosure.

Total 606.85 496.09 525.18 - 577.76

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

31.16

Prasad R Menon Vinayak K Deshpande

Rajgopal Swami Dr A Raja Mogili

Managing Director

Place : Mumbai
Chief Financial Officer

Director

Date : May 22, 2013 Company Secretary

in lac
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